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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 
 

  

Dear Shareholders,  

Good Morning ladies and gentlemen, I have much pleasure in 
welcoming you all to the Sixth (6th) Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) of Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 
(IrconVKEL) and present the audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended 2023-24. I thank each one of you for making it 
convenient for sparing your valuable time for this meeting. 

 

About the Company 

It is my privilege to place before you, highlights of IrconVKEL for the FY2023-24. 

Your Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), 
incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle on 16th May, 2018, to execute the project of Eight 
Lane Vadodara Kim Expressway from Km 323.00 to Km 355.00 (Sanpa to Padra Section of 
Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) (Phase – IA – Package II) in the State of Gujarat, pursuant 
to conditions of award of Vadodara Kim Expressway Project by NHAI. The concession period 
of the project comprises of construction period 730 days from the appointed date i.e., 31st 
January, 2019 and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation 
Date (COD).  

NHAI vide its letter dated 11th June, 2024 has conveyed its satisfaction on the Completion 
Certificate issued by independent engineers in accordance with the clause 14.2 of 
Concession Agreement w.e.f. 09th January, 2024 for the above operating part of 32.00 Km of 
the project stretch. The project can safely and reliably be placed in the commercial services of 
users thereof.   

 
Financial Performance 

IrconVKEL has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI at Bid Project Cost of Rs.1,865 
crores excluding operation and maintenance (O&M) cost. The Company has successfully 
achieved payment milestone of the project set to be achieved during construction in terms of 
Concession Agreement. Consequently, the Company is eligible for receipt of remaining 
payment of Annuity from NHAI.  

As on 31st March, 2024, Net Worth of your Company is Rs.336.32 crore, Total Income is 
Rs.168.71 crore and Profit After Tax (PAT) is Rs.48.12 crore as compared to Net Worth of 
Rs.288.21 crore, Total Income of Rs.279 crore and Profit After Tax (PAT) of Rs.21.74 crore in 
the previous year. 

Compliances and Disclosures 
 
Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company.  As per Office Memorandum 
dated 10th July 2014 and 11th July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises, CPSEs 

3



constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the DPE 
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on your 
company. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant 
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2024-25, in line with 
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public 
Enterprises (DPE) dated 10th March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 21st March, 2024 
has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the 
financial year 2024-25. 
 
Acknowledgements 
 

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Independent Engineers of NHAI, Ircon 
International Limited, Auditors of the Company and all those who have supported and guided us 
during the year. I express my deep gratitude to all employees for their dedication, intellect, hard 
work and tireless efforts that they put in every day with a sense of purpose and pride. And last, 
but not least, I would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and continuous 
support. 
 
We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.  

 
 

For and on behalf of 
Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 

             
             

Sd/- 
(Parag Verma) 

Chairman 
Date: 2nd August, 2024             DIN: 05272169 
Place: New Delhi 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

Dear Members, 
 

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 6th Annual Report of Ircon Vadodara 
Kim Expressway Limited (IrconVKEL) together with the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company and Auditor’s Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

 
IrconVKEL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle 
on 16th May, 2018, pursuant to conditions of award of Vadodara Kim Expressway Project in the 
State of Gujarat by NHAI with the main object of IrconVKEL is to carry on the business of 
development, maintenance and management of Eight lane Vadodara Kim Expressway from 
Km 323.00 to Km 355.00 (Sanpa to Padra Section of Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) in the 
State of Gujarat under NHDP Phase – VI Hybrid Annuity Mode (Phase IA-Package II) on 
design, build, finance, operate and transfer basis.  

 
IrconVKEL entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 25th May, 2018 with a 
construction period of 730 days from the appointed date i.e., 31st January, 2019 and operation 
period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation Date (COD) and Scheduled 
Completion Date was 29th January, 2021. The bid project cost of the project is Rs.1865 crore 
excluding O&M cost.  
 
The project has achieved Provisional Completion, well within approved extended time by the 
NHAI. Provisional Completion Date i.e., PCOD was declared for 25th August, 2022 for the length 
of 31.785 Kms out of 32.000 Kms. Work was not completed in the balance stretch of 215 m 
due to land acquisition issues. 

  

A Supplementary Agreement was signed between IrconVKEL and NHAI on 14th October, 2022 
and 60 days was granted to complete the balance stretch from the date of clearance of land 
issues. 
 
NHAI vide its letter dated 11th June, 2024 has conveyed its satisfaction on the Completion 
Certificate issued by independent engineers in accordance with the clause 14.2 of Concession 
Agreement w.e.f. 09th January, 2024 for the above operating part of 32.00 km of the project 
stretch. The project can safely and reliably be placed in the commercial services of users 
thereof.   

 
Your Company has already availed term loan of Rs.724.12 crore crores from Bank of Baroda 
(BOB) in the past 
 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  
 

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the financial year 
2023-24 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS).  

 
Financial performance indicators as on 31st March 2024: 
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                                                                                               (Rs. in crore) 
Sl. 
No. Particulars 

For the 
Financial 

Year Ended 
31.03.2024 

For the 
Financial Year 

Ended 
31.03.2023 

1.  Equity Share Capital 10.00 10.00 

2.  Other Equity (includes Reserves and 
Surplus) 326.32 278.21 

3.  Net Worth  336.32 288.21 
4.  Borrowings (including current maturities) 689.64 724.12 
5.  Total Assets and Liabilities 1,042.78 1,051.70 
6.  Revenue from Operations 42.99 205.44 
7.  Other Income 125.72 73.56 
8.  Total Income (6) + (7) 168.71 279.00 
9.  Profit Before Tax  64.55 29.39 
10.  Profit After Tax 48.12 21.74 

11.  

Earnings Per Equity Share (on face value 
of Rs.10/- per share) 

(i) Basic 
(ii) Diluted  

42.12 
42.12 

 
21.74 
21.74 

 
 

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE: 
 
The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24. 

 

As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the 
head ‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs.130.58 
crore in Retained Earnings as on 31st March, 2024. 

 
4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION: 
 

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 
March, 2024 is Rs.10 crore comprising of 10,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  During 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, there was no change in the share capital of your 
Company and Ircon International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share 
capital of IrconVKEL. 
 
As on 31st March, 2024, the Promoter Company (IRCON) has invested Rs.195.74 crore as 
interest free loan (which is accounted as ‘’Deemed Equity’’ under the head ‘’Other Equity’’ in 
the financial statements of IrconVKEL in addition to Rs.10 crores in equity share capital, not 
exceeding the total investment of Equity Share Capital of Rs.205.74 crore. 
 
As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 dated 22nd January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WoS) 
is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form. 
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5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT: 
 

The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.25.40 crore for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 
For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies 
of the Company. 

 
7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 
 

Board of Directors: 
 

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Directors on the Board of the Company 
are appointed by the holding company (IRCON). 
 
As on 31st March, 2024, total number of Director is four (4) including Chairman nominated by 
IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows: 
 

Category, Name & 
Designation 

DIN Appointment or Cessation 
(during the FY, if any) 

Shri Parag Verma, 
Chairman 

05272169 - 

Shri Masood Ahmad, 
Director 

09008553 Regularized at 5th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 29th August, 2023. 

Shri Rabindra Kumar 
Jaiwal 
Director 

10610969 Appointed as Additional Part-time (Nominee) 
Director w.e.f. 30th April, 2024 vice Shri Rohit 
Parmar who ceased to be a Director of the 
Company w.e.f. 24th April, 2024. 

Mrs. Aradhana Garg, 
Director 

10477168 Appointed as Additional Part-time (Nominee) 
Director w.e.f. 23rd January, 2024 vice Ms. Ritu 
Arora who ceased to be a Director of the Company 
w.e.f. 16th November, 2023. 

 
 

Shri Rohit Parmar, Part-time (Nominee) Director of your Company, ceased to be the Director 
of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the IRCON (holding company) 
w.e.f. 24th April, 2024. IRCON (holding company) nominated Shri Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal, 
CGM/ Finance/ Tax as Additional Part-time (Nominee) Directors of your Company w.e.f. 30th 
April, 2024 vice Shri Rohit Parmar. 
 
Ms. Ritu Arora, Part-time (Nominee) Director of your Company, ceased to be the Director of 
your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the IRCON w.e.f. 16th November, 
2023. IRCON nominated Mrs. Aradhana Garg, JGM/ Finance, as Additional Part-time 
(Nominee) Directors of your Company w.e.f. 23rd January, 2024 vice Ms. Ritu Arora. 
 
Shri Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal and Smt. Aradhana Garg were nominated by IRCON as 
Additional Part-time (Nominee) Directors of the Company w.e.f. 30th April, 2024 and 23rd 
January, 2024 respectively, who shall hold office upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
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The Company has received a notices under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from 
Shri Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal and Smt. Aradhana Garg giving their candidatures for 
appointment as Directors, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General Meeting (AGM). 
Their appointments as Directors by Shareholders is included in the notice of the AGM.   
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Parag 
Verma shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and being 
eligible to offer himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his re-
appointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual General 
Meeting. 
 
None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed as Director. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company 
has designated the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and 
Company Secretary (CS) as the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company. The 
details of KMPs as at 31st March, 2024 are as follows: 

 

Key Personnel of Company  Date of Appointment Designation  

Shri Nitesh Kumar G. Asati 22nd December, 2020 Chief Executive Officer  

Shri Raj Kumar 20th November, 2018 Chief Financial Officer 

Shri Shashwat Chaudhary 09th October, 2024 Company Secretary 
 

 

During the financial year 2023-24 Shri Shashwat Chaudhary was appointed as the Company 
Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 9th October, 2024 vice Ms. Shivi Kapoor, who ceased as the 
Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 7th August, 2023. 
 
 

8. BOARD MEETINGS: 
 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Board met Five (5) times on 12-05-2023, 01-08-2023, 
11-10-2023, 02-11-2023 and 31-01-2024. The interval between two Board Meetings were 
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the 
Board Meetings is as follows: 

 

Date of The Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

12-05-2023 4 4 

01-08-2023 4 4 

11-10-2023 4 3 

02-11-2023 4 4 

31-01-2024 4 4 
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       The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held 
during the financial year 2023-24 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting 
(AGM): 

Name of 
Director 

Meeting Date Whether 
attended 
last AGM 
held on 

29.08.2023 

Total Board 
Meetings 
entitled to 

attend 
during 

financial 
year  

 2023-24 

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 
during 

financial 
year 2023-24  

% of 
Attendanc

e 

12
-0

5-
20

23
 

01
-0

8-
20

23
 

11
-1

0-
20

23
 

02
-1

1-
20

23
 

31
-0

1-
20

24
 

Shri Parag 
Verma 

     Y 5 5 100 

Shri Masood 
Ahmad 
 

  -   Y 5 4 80 

Shri Rohit 
Parmar 

     Y 5 5 100 

Ms. Ritu Arora     NA Y 4 4 100 

Mrs. Aradhana 
Garg 

NA NA NA NA  NA 1 1 100 

 
9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE: 
 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05th July, 2017 exempted an 
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of 
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC). 

 
IrconVKEL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON, 
therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the declaration 
by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company. 
 
Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s Office Memorandum (OM) 
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11th July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special 
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are not applicable 
on IrconVKEL. 
 

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 

 The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 
 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended  
31st March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 
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b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment 
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 31st March, 
2024 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date; 

 
c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 
e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

11. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT’S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT: 
 
The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need 
no further explanation.  
 
There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any 
clarification/ explanation. 
 

12. AUDITORS: 
 

Statutory Auditor: 
 
M/s. Bhasin Raghavan & Co., Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory 
Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 vide CAG letter No. CA. V/COY/ Central Government, 
IVKEL(1)/337 dated 13th September, 2023. They have confirmed by way of a written consent 
and certificate as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 

Cost Auditor: 
 
The Board of Directors appointed M/s. R. M. Bansal & Co, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditor 
of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 for conducting the audit of cost records 
maintained by the Company as per the applicable Rules/ Guidance Note, etc.  
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit Rules), 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records. 
 
Secretarial Auditor: 

 
The Board of Directors appointed M/s. Vasisht & Associates, Practising Company Secretary, 
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 for conducting Secretarial 
Audit of the Company in accordance with the provision of Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 
read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
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Internal Auditor: 
 

The Board of Directors appointed M/s Ravi Rajan & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants as 
Internal Auditors for the financial year 2023-24, for conducting Internal Audit of the Company. 
 

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review. 

 
14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
 

During the financial year 2023-24, the related party transactions with the holding company, 
IRCON were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved 
in terms of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form 
AOC-2 is enclosed to this report as Annexure–A. 
 

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

 
No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of 
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 
 

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 
The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder: 
 

A. Conservation of energy: - 
 

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 

 
B. Technology absorption: - 

 
Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 

 
C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: - 

 
There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the financial 
year 2023-24. 

 
17. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to 
the business of the Company. 
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18. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
 
Every company having net worth of Rs.500 crore or more or turnover of Rs.1000 crore or 
more or a net profit of Rs.5 crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year is 
required to spend in every financial year, at least 2% of average net profits of the company 
made during the immediately three preceding financial years.  
 

Since, the net profit (PAT) of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 was 
Rs.21.74 crore which exceeds the above mentioned threshold limit, therefore, the provision 
of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was 
applicable to the Company for the financial year 2023-24. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has 
constituted CSR Committee with two Directors as Member and Company Secretary of the 
Company as Secretary to the CSR Committee. 
 
Your Company is committed to compliance with the requirement of all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and ensure transparency while conducting the business in an ethical manner.  
 
During the financial year 2023-24, against total CSR Budget of Rs.73.40 lakh, an amount of 
Rs.73.40 lakh has been spent on CSR activities. The Annual Report on CSR activities 
required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out 
as Annexure-B forming part of this report. 
 

19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 
As per Notification dated 05th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.  

 

IrconVKEL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the 
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 s as a part 
of the Directors' Report. 
 

20. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the financial year 2023-
24. 
 

21. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, your Company has not invited any deposits 
from its members pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
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22. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the 
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for 
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your 
Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate 
with its size and nature of its business. 

 
23. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE  

 
No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 
status of the Company and its operations in future during the financial year 2023-24. 

 
24. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE 

PREFERENCE POLICY 
 

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies 
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crores and all 
CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables Discounting 
System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. The 
Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to monitor the 
compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, Government 
of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the 
CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the Company has boarded on the TReDS 
platform w.e.f. 27th September, 2019, to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs 
by discounting of their receivables and realisation of their payment before the due date. 
 
 

25. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

  
The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable 
on the Company and the Internal Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters under POSH 
Act. 
 
During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to sexual 
harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 
26. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

 
The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns 
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also provides 
for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. 
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Being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and deputed from 
IRCON, the Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available on the website 
at , https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf. 
 
For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint/ reporting under Vigil 
Mechanism, can be addressed to: 
 

Shri Parag Verma, Chairman, 
Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited (IrconVKEL) 
Address: Ircon International Limited, 
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017 

  Phone No.: +91 9560595061, Email id: parag.verma@ircon.org 

 
 

27. RIGHT TO INFORMATION: 
 
No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during 
the financial year 2023-24. 
 

28. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:  
 

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5th June 2015, sub-sections 
(2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to Directors 
of Government Company. 

 

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, 
all part-time Directors of the Company are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The 
evaluation of these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined 
criteria in line with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, performance evaluation 
of Directors is not applicable on your company. 
 

29. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company is in compliance with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  
 

30. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  
 

 

The “Secretarial Audit Report” of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 from the 
Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is placed as Annexure–C to this Report. The Secretarial Auditors have given an 
unqualified report. The report is self-explanatory and does not require any further comments 
by the Board. 
 

31. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS  
 

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for financial year 2023-24 
with nil observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report. CAG vide its letter 
dated 2nd July, 2024 has also conveyed that C&AG has decided not to conduct supplementary 
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audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 i.e., C&AG issued non-
review certificate. 
 

 
32. APPLICATION/ PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY 

CODE, 2016 
 

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency & 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 

 
33. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU): 
 

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines 
dated 10th March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are 
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MoU with its holding company and holding 
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary companies 
and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 31st of March of the base year.  
 

10.  

In line with the MoU Guidelines of DPE, IRCON vide its letters dated 21st March, 2024 has 
granted exemption to the Company from entering into MoU for the financial year 2024-25. 
 

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/ 
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks, 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and 
look forward to their continued support in the future. 
 
We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all 
levels. Your Board of Directors also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and sincere 
thanks for the cooperation and assistance received from the Shareholders during the period 
under report. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, 
cooperation and support.  

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

of Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 
 

                                 
              Sd/- 

       (Parag Verma) 
Chairman 

DIN: 05272169 
Date: 2nd August, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE – A 
 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto for the financial year 2023-24: 

 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows 

 

Note:  
1.  Apart from above said transactions, IRCON has deputed its employees i.e. CEO, CFO and other staffs 

to IrconVKEL and the salary, benefits (like PF, GIS, Society deduction, related payments, etc.) and 
other miscellaneous payment in nature of travelling/ ticket cost etc. paid to such deputed employees 
as per IRCON’s policy are reimbursed on actual cost basis.  

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

of Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 
                                                               

Sd/- 
(Parag Verma) 

Date:2nd August, 2024                       Chairman  
Place: New Delhi                    DIN: 05272169 

    Sr.No. 
Nature of contracts 
or arrangements or 
transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 

Salient terms of the 
Contracts or 
Arrangements or 
Transactions 
including the value, 
if any 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any: 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any: 

1.  

EPC Agreement  
(For Appointing Ircon 
International Limited 
as EPC Contractor for 
development, 
maintenance and 
management of Eight 
lane Vadodara Kim 
Expressway from Km 
323.00 to Km 355.00 
(Sanpa to Padra 
Section of Vadodara 
Mumbai Expressway) 
in the State of Gujarat 

730 days  from 
the appointed 
date and as 
extended by 
NHAI 
subsequently 

Agreement dated 
09.11.2018 and 
addendums dated 
10.08.2019 & 
03.01.2020 
 
The Contract has 
been awarded to 
IRCON for a 
consideration of 
Rs.1,377.73 crore 
inclusive GST @ 12%. 

18th July, 2018 
29th July, 2019 
18th December, 

2019 
Respectively 

NIL 

2.  
Lease Agreement   
(To take on lease the 
Office Premises of 
IRCON) 

Three Years  
(01-04-2023 to 
31.03.2025) 

Lease Agreement 
executed on 2nd June, 
2021 for rent @ 
Rs.23,359/- p.m. plus 
GST 

22nd March, 
2023 

NIL  
(As on 
Date) 

3.  

O & M Work 
IrconVKEL vide letter 
dated 15-05-2023 
awarded additional 
work of Rs.43.29 
Crore (including GST 
& Escalation) for O & 
M works for a period 
of 4 years after 
commencement of 
PCOD w.e.f. 26-08-
2022 

Four Years 
after 
commencement 
of PCOD w.e.f. 
26-08-2022 
 

IrconVKEL vide letter 
dated 15-05-2023 
awarded additional 
work of Rs.43.29 
Crore (including GST 
& Escalation) for O & 
M works for a period 
of 4 years after 
commencement of 
PCOD w.e.f. 26-08-
2022 

26th August, 
2022 

43.29 
crores 

A
O

C
-2
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Annexure-B 
 

Annual Report on CSR & Sustainability 
 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 
 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a company’s commitment to address social, 
ethical and environmental concerns in which it operates and contribute to develop a 
sustainable society through sustainability initiatives by conducting business in a manner 
that is beneficial to both, business and society. 

IrconVKEL is committed to undertake Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities in 
accordance with provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (“CSR Rules”), as 
amended time to time and Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) Guidelines, 2014 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “CSR laws”), with the former taking precedence over 
the later in case of any conflict. 

The Company shall allocate the budget for CSR activities. The minimum budgeted amount 
for a financial year shall be 2% of the average net profit (as defined under CSR Rules) of 
three immediate preceding financial years. The Company may allocate more fund for the 
CSR activities in any financial year than the amount prescribed under the Act. 

The Company shall undertake CSR activities as per Schedule VII of the Act through 
following three modes of implementation: 

(a) Implementation by the Company itself; 

(b) Implementation through eligible implementing agencies as prescribed in CSR Rules; 

(c) Implementation in collaboration with one or more companies as prescribed in CSR 
Rules. 

If any amount spent in excess of requirement as per sub-section (5) of section 135, such 
excess amount may be set off against the requirement to spend under sub-section (5) of 
section 135 upto immediate succeeding three financial years subject to the conditions that: 

i) the excess amount available for set off shall not include the surplus arising out of the 
CSR activities, if any. 

ii) the Board shall pass a resolution to that effect. 

 
2. Composition of CSR Committee 

 
S.No. Name and designation of 

Member(s) 
No. of Meeting of CSR 
Committee held during 
the year 

No. of Meeting of CSR 
Committee attended 
during the year 

1. Shri Masood Ahmad 
Chairman 
(Part-time (Nominee) 
Director) 

Two (2) Two (2) 

2. Shri Rohit Parmar* 
Member 
(Part-time (Nominee) 
Director) 

Two (2) Two (2) 

* Shri Rohit Parmar ceased to be the member of the Committee w.e.f. 24th April, 2024 and Shri Rabindra Kumar 
Jaiswal has been appointed as member of the CSR Committee vice Shri Rohit Parmar 

 
Since Company is not required to appoint an independent director under sub-section (4) 
of section 149, therefore, as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the CSR Committee 
of the Company consists of 2 Directors as Member namely Shri Masood Ahmad and Shri 
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Rohit Parmar.  
 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR 
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.: N.A. 

 
4. Provide the execute summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR 

projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8   if applicable.:  
 
Not applicable for this financial year. Further, none of the Completed CSR activities taken 
up during FY 2023-24 were of Rs.1 crore or above for which impact assessment is required.  

 
5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:  Rs.36.70  

crore.  
            (b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.73.40 
 lakh    
 

         (c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or  programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years: N.A. 
 

 (d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A. 
 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)- ( d)]: Rs.73.40 lakh   
     6.                                                                                                                                   (Rs. in lakh) 

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects  
(both Ongoing Projects and other than Ongoing Projects)  

73.40 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads 0.00  
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil  
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] 73.40 

 
      (e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

(Rs. in lakh) 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial 
Year (in Rs.) 

  

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as 
per sub-section (6) of 
section 135. 

Amount transerred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
sub-section (5) of section 135. 

 Amount. Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of 
transfer 

73.40 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
        (f) Excess amount for set off, if any 

 
           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sl. 
No. 

   Particular    Amount  
(Rs. in lakh) 

(1) (2) (3) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

section 135(5) 
73.40 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 73.40 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.00 

(iv) Surplus arising out of  the CSR projects or  programmes or 
activities of the previous financial years, if any 

0.00 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-
(iv)] 

0.00  
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  7.  Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three            
 Financial Years: 

               

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Sl.No Preceding 

Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under sub-
section (6) 
of section 

135 (in Rs.) 

Balance 
Amount in 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under sub-
section (6) 
of section 

135 (in Rs.) 

Amount 
Spent in 

the 
Financia

l Year 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
transferred to a 

Fund as specified 
under Schedule 

VII as per second 
proviso to sub-
section (5) of 
section 135, if 

any 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

Financial 
Years (in Rs.) 

Deficiency, 
if any 

Amount  
(in Rs.) 

Amount  
(in Rs.) 

Date of 
Transfer 

1 2020-
21 

Nil 2 2021-
22 

3 2022-
23 

Total Nil 
          
     8.  Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 
 
                                  Yes                              No 
                   
               
       If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:-  N.A.         

                
       Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: N.A. 
 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per section 135(5).: N.A. 

 
Chairman of the Company Chairman and Member of 

the CSR Committee 
Member of the CSR 

Committee 
 

Sd/- 
Mr. Parag Verma 

Chairman and Director 
(DIN: 05272169) 

 
Sd/- 

Mr. Masood Ahmad 
Director & Member- CSR 

Committee 
(DIN: 09008553) 

 
Sd/- 

Mr. Rabindra Kumar Jaiswal 
Director & Member CSR 

Committee 
(DIN: 10610969) 

 
 
 
 

Date: 2nd August, 2024  
Place: New Delhi 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

√ 
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FORM NO. MR-3 
 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 

 [Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
To, 
The Members, 
IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN: U74999DL2018GOI334028 
C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-110017, India 
 

I, Shobhit Vasisht, Proprietor of Vasisht & Associates, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by IRCON 
VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on the verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 
 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;(Not   
Applicable to the Company) 
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(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;(Not   Applicable 
to the Company) 

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;(Not 
Applicable to the Company) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
(Not Applicable to the Company) 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(e) The Securities and exchange board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt securities) Regulations, 
2008; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 and amendments thereof regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 
Applicable to the Company)  

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 
Applicable to the Company) 

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) 
Regulations 2021;(Not Applicable to the Company) 

 
 

(vi)         I further report that the system and processes of the Company are in place to ensure the compliance 
with general laws like Labour Laws, The Indian Contract Act, The Sexual Harassment of women at 
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 etc. For the purpose of examining 
adequacy of compliance with other applicable laws including industry / sector specific laws, under 
both Central and State legislation, reliance has been placed on the representation made by the 
Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for the compliance 
under these laws. 
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The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been 
reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory auditor(s) and other 
designated professionals. 
 

 I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: 
 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board 

and General meeting; 
(ii) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the 

Department of Public Enterprises vide their OM No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14th May, 2010. 
 

(However, it is understood that as the Company is constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) got an 
exemption for appointment of independent directors, submitting Quarterly report and other Compliances of 
Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), vide its O.M. dated July 
11, 2019 and July 8, 2014.) 
 
   

 I further report that: 
 

 The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with Non-Executive Directors 
(including Women Director) as nominated by its Holding Company (“Ircon International Limited”),as per 
the Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. 

 
 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except for meetings of the Board of Directors, where 
consent for shorter notice was obtained. System exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 
 All decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously as 

recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 

 As per the explanations given to me and the representations made by the Management and relied upon 
by me, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 
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During the period under review, as explained and represented by the management, there were no 
specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards 
etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs. 

 
For VASISHT & ASSOCIATES; 

                                                                                                                   (Company Secretaries) 
  
 

 CS SHOBHIT VASISHT 
UDIN: F011517F000314193  

PR No: 2355/2022 
FCS No: 11517 
C P No: 21476 

                                                                                                        
Date:  May 06, 2024 
Place: Faridabad 
 
 
 
Note: This report is to be read with the letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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                                                                                                                                              Annexure-A 
 

To, 
The Members, 
IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN: U74999DL2018GOI334028 
C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-110017, India 
 
This report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit.  
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, 
i followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.  

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company.  
 

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 
basis.  
 

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 
FOR VASISHT & ASSOCIATES; 

                                                   (Company Secretaries) 
 
 

 CS SHOBHIT VASISHT 
UDIN: F011517F000314193  

PR No: 2355/2022 
FCS No: 11517 
C P No: 21476 

                                                                                                        
Date: May 06, 2024  
Place: Faridabad 
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BHASIN RAGHAVAN & CO . 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

dF-q8~ PJJ!tGf/at~1fh ~ 
Q/V~ ~Ie~ 
GVVew PJ)eIIu-1I0001 
'PJ>kme : 011-q56'2:J278~ .9871.936'.150 

w-~: bhasinraghavan@gmail.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF IReON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of 
IReON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (the "Company"), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including material accounting policy 
information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
"Standalone Ind As financial statements") .. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards(,lnd As') prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 , and its profit (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 
most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matters to communicate in our 
report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Company's annual report but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Standalone Financial Statements 
The accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements have been approved 
by the Company's Board of Directors. The Company's Board of Directors is 
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income , changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amended from time to time. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
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recerds, relevant to. the preparatien and presentatien ef the standalene Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free frem material 
misstatement, whether due to. fraud er errer. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, Beard ef Directers is 
respensible fer assessing the Cempany's ability to. centinue as ageing cencern, 
disclesing, as applicable, matters related to. geing cencern and using the going 
cencern basis ef acceunting unless Beard ef Directers either intends to. liquidate 
the Cempany er to. cease eperatiens, er has no. realistic alternative but to. de so.. 

The Beard ef Directers is also. respensible fer everseeing the Cempany's 
financial reperting precess. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
Our ebjectives are to. ebtain reasenable assurance abeut whether the financial 
statements as a whele are free frem material misstatement, whether due to. 
fraud er errer, and to. issue an auditer's repert that includes eur epinion. 
Reasenable assurance is a high level ef assurance, but is net a guarantee that 
an audit cenducted in accerdance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud er error and are 
censidered material if, individually er in the aggregate, they ceuld reasenably be 
expected to. influence the ecenemic decisiens ef users taken en the basis ef 
these financial statements. 

As part ef an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise prefessienal judgment 
and maintain prefessienal skepticism threugheut the audit. We also.: 

Identify and assess the risks ef material misstatement ef the financial 
statements, whether due to. fraud er error, design and perferm audit 
procedures respensive to. these risks, and ebtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and apprepriate to. previde a basis fer eur epinien. The risk ef net 
detecting a material misstatement resulting frem fraud is higher than fer ene 
resulting frem errer, as fraud may invelve cellusien, fergery, intentienal 
emissiens, misrepresentatiens, er the everride ef internal centrel. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 
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Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the gOing 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the relate.d disclosures in the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication . 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been 
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), and the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply 
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

e. Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are 
not applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th 
June 2015, issued by the Central Government of India. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

g. Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are 
not applicable vide notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, 
issued by the Central Government of India. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would 
have a material impact on its financial position . 

ii . Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no 
material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may 
require any provisioning. The Company did not have any derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person 
or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or 
interim dividend during the period and until the date of this report, 
therefore, the reporting under clause is not applicable. 

vi. (a) Based on our examination which included test checks, the 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books 
of account for the financial year ended March 31 , 2024 which has 
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the accounting software. Further, during the course of 
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with. 
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(b) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) RUles, 
2014 is applicable from April1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for 
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 
March31,2024. 

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, we report that: 

S.No 
1. 

2. 

Directions 
Whether the company has 
system in place to process all the 
accounting transactions through 
IT system? If yes, the implications 
of processing of accounting 
transactions outside IT system on 
the Integrity of the accounts along 
with the financial implications, if 
any, may be stated. 

Whether there is any 
restructuring of an existing loan 
or cases of waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
a lender to the company due to 
the company's inability to repay 
the loan? If yes, the financial 
impact may be stated. Whether 
such cases are properly 
accounted for? (I n case, lender is 
a Government company, then this 
direction is also applicable for 
statutory auditor of lender 
company). 

Whether funds (grants/subsidy 
etc.) received/receivable for 
specific schemes from 
Central/State Government or its 

Auditor's Replies 
The Company has SAP 
system to process all the 
accounting transactions 
and used for preparation 
of the financial accounts. 

Based on the audit 
procedures carried out 
and as per the 
information and 
explanations given to us 
,there is no accounting 
transaction processed 
outside IT System for 
which no financial 
implication were 
observed. 
No, Company is having 
no case of any 
restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of 
waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. 
made by a lender to the 
company due to the 
company's inability to 
repay the loan. 

According to the 
information and 
explanation given to 
us and as per our 
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Place: New Delhi 

Date: 1 0-05-2024 

agencies were properly examination of 
accounted for/utilized as per its records, no funds 
term and conditions? List 
cases of deviation 

the have been 
received/receivable 
for any specific 
scheme from 
Central/State 
Government or its 
agencies during the 
financial year 2023-
24. 

For Bhasin Raghavan & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No:000197N 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of IRCON VADODARA KIM 
EXPRESSWA Y LIMITED of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the 
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit, we state that: 

I. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible 
assets. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management 
during the year. There is a regular program of verification, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. 
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) During the year no assets has been revalued by the Company, hence reporting 
under clause 3 (i) d of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) The Company does not have any immovable properties during the year, hence 
reporting under clause 3 (i) (c), and 3 (i) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the 
company. 

II. (a) The Company does not have any inventory, hence reporting under clause 3 
(ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits, in excess of 
Rs 5 Crores, in aggregate at any point of time during the year, from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, hence reporting 
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

III. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security .. or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and any other parties, during the 
year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d) and ( e) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

IV. The Company has not granted loan, made investment, and provided guarantee and 
security, hence clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits, hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

VI. The Company has maintained cost records specified by the Central Govt. under the 
provisions of section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, we are neither 
required to carry out, nor have carried out any detailed examination of such 
accounts and records. 

VII. In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 
dues applicable with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues in 
arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable. 

(b)According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per 
examination of records of the Company, there is no amount payable in respect 
of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value 
Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on 
account of any dispute, except GST Appeal is pending before learned 
Commissioner (Appeals) GST against Tax demand of Rs 105 .21 Crores and 
penalty of Rs 105 .. 21 Crores, against which the Company has already 
deposited Rs 19.26 Crores . 

VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us , No transactions were 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in 
the books of accounts. 

IX. A) In respect of loans and borrowings taken by the Company, based on our review 
of accounts and as per information provided , the Company has not defaulted in 
payment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon during 
the year under audit. 

8) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or any other lender. 

C) Term loans received by the Company were applied for the purpose for which 
the loans were obtained. 

34



D) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 
raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term 
purposes. 

E) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its Associates. 

F) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in associates, hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

X. A) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the period and hence reporting 
under clause 3(x) (a) of theOrder is not applicable. 

8) During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or 
optionally), hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

XI. (a) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company 
and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by the Auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year 
and upto the date of this report. 

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto 
the date of this report), 

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company, hence reporting under clause (xii) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

XIII. in our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

XIV. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination the Company-has an adequate 
internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business. 

(b)We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to 
the Company during the year and till date. 
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xv. According to the information and explanation given to us , in our opinion during the 
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 
Directors or persons connected with its directors, hence provisions of section 192 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

XVI. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) 
and (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information provided and explanation given in our opinion, the 
Company is not engaged in the business which attracts the requirement of 
registration of the Company as Core Investment Company and further, there is no 
Core Investment Company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016), hence reporting under clause 
3(xvi) (c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable 

XVII. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year covered by our audit 
and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. 

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the · 
future viability of the Company. We furtherstate that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

XX. (a) There is no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 
other than ongoing projects for requiring a transfer to a fund specified in schedule 
VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub section (5) of 
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)a of the order 
is not applicable for the year. 

(b)There is no amount incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 
ongoing projects for the year. 
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.. 

XXI. The Company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statements, 
hence reporting under clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 1 0-05-2024 
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Annexure 8" to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial 
Statements of Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited for the period ended 31 st 

March,2024 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31 st March 2024. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and 

(iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, "based on the internal 
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India". 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 1 0-05-2024 

For Bhasin Raghavan & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg~· ration No:000197N 

~ ,I"' Raghavan .P 

~~ co 0 
~Iew Delhi .* 

Vikram Sin " ~c" 
Qrtered AccO I.l(\\'3~ 

(Partner) 
Membership No: 093458 

UDIN-24093458BKAPYX7058 
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6.89600 

~88 45 

2~2 3R 
~ll R7 

1l$1926 

1.04.171.01 

6~ 9691:i 

7.67PO 

1.04.1 8.0.1 

For lind on beh:llif of Board of Dire-etol S 

Ireon V3dodar:ll Kim ~p,·tuwa · 11111\.~d 

~ o_~ 
DIN-11I6 W'~ 

R.,'Z. 
CFO 

1175 
3.362 -'7 

060 
8.97661 

14397 
8.36988 

1.00000 
H.1l061 

68.96400 

39.5 95 

3,oW800 

5047 

3.25863 

11)9 33 
3170 

10 16~ II 

I,gsJ69.76 

IUI061 

~.l~99J 

1.05.169.16 
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IReON VADODARA KJM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN - U74999DL2018GOl334028 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024 

Particulars 

I Re\'cnu~ : 

Revenue from operations 

II. Other income 

m. Total Income (I + U) 

IV. Expenses: 
Project Expenses 
O[hel Expenses 

Employ •• Benefits Expenses 

fin""l:<: Costs 
Dcprecl ftllan, Amortisation and Impainnent 

Total E:cpellJ<S flV) 

V Profil Before exceptio •• 1 items and Tax (rn - IV) 

VI. Exceptional items 

Vll Profit before tax (V + VI) 

VllI T.n." expenses: 
( I ) Current tax 

- For lite Period 
- For earlier years (net) 

(2) Deferred tax (ne[) 

Total Tax Expense 

IX Profit for the ye.r from conrinuing operatioo (VIl- VIlI) 

X Other CQI!lgrehC1l~ivc I nC!:~mc 
A. (i) Items lItat will not be reclassified 10 profit or loss 

(u) Income Tax relating [0 Items lItat will not be reclassified [0 profit or loss 

B. (i) Items lItat will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income Tax relating to Items lItat will be reclassified to profit or loss 

XI To tnJ Comprehensi •• IDcome for the year (IX +X) (Comprising profit/(Ioss) 
30d other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax) 

XII Earnings Per Equity Share: 
(For Continuing Operation ) 
( I) Basic 
(2 ) Dilu[ed 

F.~e Value Per Equity Share 

XIII Summary orMaterial Accountin!; Policies 
XIV NOteS formm t.; pa.n of fiI1n:nl:lr.r 5\mernl!'f'1ts 

As per our Report of even dart II ft3ched 

Vikram Singh 
Partner 
M No 093458 

Place ~ew Delhi 
Dale 1005 2024 

Note No. 
For the year ended 3 ht 

March 2024 

15 4,298.92 

16 12,572 29 

16,871.21 

17 4,018.30 

17 7527 

18 10578 

19 6,21641 

20 

I O,~ I S.76 

. 
6,455 .45 

6,45545 

1,64175 
0.21 

168 

1,643 ,64 

4,811.81 

-
-
-

4.811.81 

30 48 12 
48 12 
1000 

2 
1-40 

For ond on behalf of Board of Oi"ector> 
lreon Vlldodarn Kim ExpresswilY Limited 

CFO 

(Rs i,,- ukh) 
~ 

For the year "' .. ded 
31st March ~ 023 

~ 

20,054400 

7,35567 

27.899.67 -
19, 69932 

5576 
13362 

5 , 07170 

021 

24 .960.61 

2,93906 

-
2,93906 

75929 

(0 Oi l 
542 

76470 

2.174.36 

-

-
-

2.174.36 

2174 
2174 

1000 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWA Y LI~IITED 
CU'I- U74999DL2018GOIJJ40lS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIST MARCH 2024 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Qr Ih~ .Yi'.'lI r f nd lCtl J I n ,\'1 111 reh ~1l 2 04 

Particllla" 
B.lance as at 01 April. 2023 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 
Restated balance at the 1 April. 2023 

Chan Illes in eCluitv snare caD ital durinl! the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

Fa t the vcar Cflded l i ,,1 March 10JJ , 
Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April. 2022 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 
Reslated balance at 01 April. 2022 
Changes in equity :ihaTe capital durinll the year 
Balance as at 311\olarch. 2023 

B. Other Equity 

f or the ye.B f cmJcd J 1. 1 !)hlrch ZOl-l 

Particulars 

Balance.as at 1 ",pril. 202.3 
Cnanl.!es in accountinl.! policv or prior period errQrs 

Re1tllted balance n at 1 April 2023 
Profit for the year 
Addition durinlZ the year 

Other ComDrehensive Income 
Remeasurment of Defined Benefit Plans 
Foreilln Exchanlle tr.rnslation dtfference 
Total Comprehensive Income (or the period 
Dividends Paid 

Dividend Distribution Tax 

Rahmce as at 31 March 2024 

For the yur ended 31st I\'IQrch. 2023 

Particlllan 

Balance as al 1 ADril. 2022 

Chan.Ltes in accountin~ POlicv or Drior oeriod errors 
Re5'aled balance lOtS at 1 April 1022 

Profit for the ve:J.r 
Add ilion dunn\! the vear 
Other ComDrehensive Income 
Remeasurment of Defined Benefit Plans 
Foren.;n Excnange translation difference 
Total Comprehensive Income ror fhe period 
Dividends Paid 
Di, idt!nd Distribution TH 

Bablnc!!;iS at 31 Much. 20B 

As per Olil' Repol 't or even date altached 

For Bh;tsin Raghavan & Co 

Vikram Singh 
P:J.rtner 
M No Oq3~58 

Pbcl! ~cw Deihl 
Dare I 0 I)~ 2n2~ 

Rt5erves & Surplus 

General Rrnrvn Refained Earnings Deemed Eqnity 

8.246.68 \9.574.00 

8.146,68 19.574.00 
U I1.8 1 

4.81l.8\ 

lJ,05~.49 \9.574.00 

Rrnrves & Surplus 

General Reserves Retained Earnings Deemed Equity 

16.91800 

6.072.J2 16.918.00 
) 17-136 

2.17-'.36 2.656.00 

lQ..574 .0n 

For and on behalr of BoarLi of Dit'ecton 
Jrcon Vadodan. Kim Expn'ssway Limited 

CEO 
RJJ Kumar 

CFO 

(Rs ' L .. "') ,. 
Amount 

1.000 

1,000 

1.000 

Amount 
1.000 

1.000 

-
1.000 

Other Comprehensive 
(ncome 

Exchanec differences 
on translating the 

rinillciaistatement of 

a roreign opention 

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Enhanee differences 
on translating the 

f1mutd .. l al.llU!m enl of 
a foreign operation 

IRs In t..khl 

Total 

27.820.6< 

27,820.68 
4.81 L81 

4.811.81 

J2.632.49 

(Rs in Lakh 

Total 

22.99032 

22.990 .. J~ 

'.174.16 
1.65600 

~.8JOJ6 

27.820.68 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN· U7~9990l'!OIItGOJJJ.j028 
STATEMENT OF CASH fLOWS FOR THE Y~AR ENDED JIST MARCH 101~ 

P:1rlicullfrs 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit before hixlilion 
Adjustment for: 
Depreciation. amorti"Allion :lIld impairment 
Loss on sate or assets (nel) 
Finance Cost 
Bank Inlerest 

inlcrcslincomc on Finane; .. 1 Assets 

OI'Ulllin~ Profit bc:ron: Current lNon-Cllrnnl Asstt5l1nd Liabilities 

Alljushnc:nl ror: 

Decrease I (Increase) In Tr.Jdc R«ci\ablcS/ FinancIal Assets -loans 
DccrcDsc !(lncrciJsc) in OIlier Assets & Fin.lnl:ial Assets 
(Decrease) I lncrc.nc In Trade Pa~ :abies 

(Dccrcil5c) IlllCrcilSC in Other Liilbilitics. Financial Liabilities & Pro\ isions 

C.ltsb GencTwtcd From Or)(rtllions 

Income Tax Paid (Net of Rerun d) 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Salc:l(Purehascl or Propert). Plant and Equipment 
Bank [nlerest 
Interest Income on fin:mcial AsSCls 

(ImcsUT\cnt) I Maturil~ or Bank Deposits (ha, ing m3turit~ or more lh~) months) 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Lo3n From lrcon Internalional Limited 

mlerat expense on Loan from Sank of Baroda 

lntcrcsl expense on LOilll from "'eon Intem:Jtional Limited 

Other rmancc cost 

Loan from Bank or Baroda 

Repayment of Lonn 10 Bank of Barod.ll 

Receipt of [ntCl't!!lt Free Lo~ Crorn lrcon fnlemari0n3i Limited 

NET CASH FROM FlNANCING ACTIVITIES 

Effect or E.~ehangc diCferencc:s on tr3nSl:uion of Foreign Currency Cash & C~ 
Equi,alcnts 

NET INCREASE I (DECREASE) IN CASH 6< CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING) 
Cilsh in Hand 
Balances WitJl banks: 

- On current accounts 
- Flcxi Accounts 

- Deposits "ith original malurit~ oflcss thon 3 months 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING) 
Cash in Hand 
Balnnccs "illl boutk:s: 

- On currcnt aC:C:OWllS 
- F1c'I;i Ac:counts 

- Deposits "jlh ori~inal maluril~ orlcss thall ) months 

:'lET I:<CREASE I (DECRE.~SEIIN CASH & CASH EQI:IVALENTS 

(I) 

(2) 

(1+2) 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(D) 

(A+8+C+D) 

(E) 

(F) 

I F , EI 

Rccnncili:ltiun ur liabilities :Jrisin~ rrom r.nancin~ :acthilics:as un Jist MOirth 20!~ 

Particulars 

B<Jlan.:,:;]s <.It IslAoril2023 

:"Inn C:lsh Chan!;!cs due tn 
lnlcrcstaccmccl Non cash 
Clish nuns: 

-R.:pa~mcnls Prl~I".11 
-Rcpa~mcnls rn'!:1~ 
-PrOClXd Pm·~Fa 
Bal:lR(c as Oil 3lst Manh ~O~4 Pnnclpal 

Lticrcu 
rlll ll i 

til' jn L.okhl 

For Ihe YCllr ended J151 M;lrch 202..1 For the year cracted JIsI Martb 2023 

6.-15545 

621641 
(lj 8l) 

( J1..529951 

(L2:!5 R5) 

1.918 25 
(2 ,8206;) 

60lJ 

J l6247 

16512 

UN] 00 

LII:!n Frllm IRCO!'.' 

(i XlJG 00 

5(,17X 

l~lI"UJ) 

(,:-I%OIJ 

')fill':; 
7.7117JfJ 

106.08 

(1,068.11) 

(961.1U) 

(1 ,;78 ;1) 

(l$j0.55) 

2& -'8 
1l.68817 

(l ,12Ioo) 

9.595.65 

(l,ll271) 

(56 90) 

(JOI8~) 

(J,448oo) 

(9,159A5) 

(1,IOU5) 

2.93906 

021 

5,07170 

21160 

(7.30735) 

(5.981. 78) 

(101) SO) 

III 70 

J.361.J7 1-_____ -'0-'0.:.,0 

3362-'1 

1.258. l21-______ _ 

(2 . IO~ .J5) 

tR. in l.k~' 
LU:in Frllm B:ank or 

8:lrOlI:1 

.i J .i171) 

IJ • ..j.-IX 1111) 

15 ]5 ~ 71) 

(,~ .06~ UO 
I}:W 

G1.0"I.HU 

6117.97 

(ll.720 J6 ) 

(465 ll) 

11~,185.69) 

014 

6.00662 

6,006.76 

J.~8 00 

(4,-1-1; 26) 

(4191) 

(20lll) 

1l.462 00 

(l,~8oo) 

2.6l6,oo 

J.2~8.77 

lIJ.70 

J.l62A7 

J.2~1U7 
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Reconcilialion of liabilities Irising rrom fiolacinK Iclh'ities as on list Mln:b 2023 
rRiin blHl.l 

Particul.n LOIID From IRCON 
Lo.In From IlMnk or 
.lbrod. 

n .lance as II lsi APriL2022 Princ.ioal 3A4800 jj.502JJIJ 

[ntcn:sl 1877 10.49 

Nuo Cub ChlnftS due 10 
Inla'l:stacaucd Noocash 41909 " ,J.JIJ.a'J 
Cub nOll's: 

'" l:PS'ments Pnn.::.~1 (M 4 110) 

~tI: =P8'1DCII1S Im~ (41911 14.44S 26 ) 

.I'rocccd l'rbm~:d 3.448.00 L~A6200 

BlliJince If Jist March lOU 1'rtndp>L. 6.896.00 6 -.516 .. Dtl 
rnlCK'51 395,95 1472 

Tit". 7.291.95 63.530. : 

Note; I The abo\-c Cash now S18tcmcnt has been prepared WKIcr the "Indi.rect Mcthod"as set out in the lndillR Accowtting Standard ([nd AS) -7 on Stllcmcnt of Cash Aows 

2 Figures in bnd.:cts rcpn:scnt outflow of casb 

3 Filures or thc IR' ioWi }'CaI' IUI\'c been. rqrouped I recasted I restated whcn:1.'cr 1lCCCSS8I1'. 

4 Earmarked and n::sbicccd balances arc mentioned in Notc 7 2, 

As per our RcIMJrt or e\'en date attlched 

Vikram Sinah 
I'artnc£ 
M No. 093458 

Place: New Delhi 
D,",: 10 052024 

For Ind on bebllf of Bard or Directors 
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Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1 . corporate Information 

Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited (IrconVKEL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International 
Limited (IRCON), public sector construction company domiciled in India. IrconVKEL (CIN 
U74999DL2018G0I334028) is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable 
in India. The registered office of the company is located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-
11 0017. In pursuant to the provisions of "Request for Proposal", the selected bidder 'IRCON' has formed 
a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited as wholly owned 
subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated on 16th May, 2018. Accordingly, IrconVKEL has signed the 
Concession Agreement with NHAI on 25th May, 2018 for the project value amounting to Rs 1865 Crore 
(i.e Bid Project Cost). 40% of the Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple, shall and due and 
payable to the Concessionaire(IrconVKEL) in 5 equal installments of 8% each during the construction 
period. The remaining Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple, shall be due and payable in 
30 biannual installments commencing from the 180th day of COD in accordance with the Provisions of 
clause 23.6 of the agreement which is Annuity payments during Operation Period. The Project is under 
Annuity pattern and will be under operation with the IrconVKEL for 15 years from the Commercial 
Operational Date (COD). The payments of the same, under Annuity model will be payable at the 
achievement of specific milestone as per the agreement. The Concession period is 730 days 
commencing from Appointed Date i.e. 31st Jan, 2019 as notified by NHAI. NHAI has issued the 
Provisional Completion Certificate w.e.f. 25 .08.2022 and subsequent to achievement of PCOD, 
Operation & Maintenance phase of the Project has been commenced w.e.f 26.08.2022. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting 
held on 10.05.2024. 

2. Material accounting policies 

2.1. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

i . Statement of compliance 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis 
following accrual system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to 
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial 
statements. 

ii. Basis of measurement 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value . 

iii. Functional and Presentation Currency 

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company's 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Lakhs up to two decimals except for 
per share data, unless otherwise stated. 
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Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

2.2. Summary of material accounting policies 

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are 
as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

2.2.1. Current and non-current classification 

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose 
of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

2.2.2. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes: 

(a)its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates; 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset which incurred in bringing the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. 

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
disclosed in the notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than 5% of the original cost of assets. 

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to ~5000/- are fully 
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to 
employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in profit or loss within other gains/(Iosses). 

2.2.3. Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the 
estimated recoverable amount of the asset. 
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Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 202 4 

2.2.4. Revenue Recognition 

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the 
construction and operation & maintenance services pertaining to an infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid 
Annuity Mode. 

i. Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement 

The Company's contracts with the Customers for the construction and operation & maintenance 
services under the Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) are accounted for as a single performance 
obligation as contract is negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective and involves 
complex integration of construction and maintenance services. 

Revenue is recognised over the time using input method (i.e., percentage-of-completion method) 
which is consistent with the transfer of control to the customer because there is a direct relationship 
between the Company's effort (i.e., cost incurred) and the transfer of service to the customer. Under 
input method, contract revenue is recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion as 
at the reporting date. The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost 
incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, 
where the Company is not be able to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, 
but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the 
Company recognises revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can 
reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment 
would be recognized in the period in which the entity is able to reasonably measure its progress. 
Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recognised in the period in which they are 
determined as assessed at the contract level. 

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total, in 
the period the losses are identified. 

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and is 
adjusted for variable considerations. Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due to 
liquidated damages, price variation clauses, incentives, change in law etc. The Company recognizes 
revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount 
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be 
recognized on variable consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts 
allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of 
revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration 
that is conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract 
settlement is not considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide 
customer with a form of security for Company's remaining performance as specified under the 
contract, which is consistent with the industry practice. 

47



Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., 
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivable 
are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing 
components. The Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual 
cash flows and therefore measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method less loss allowance. 

Contract liabilities 
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a 
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Financial Assets Under Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers) 

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right 
to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor ("NHAI") for the 
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services. 

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. 

ii. Other income 

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the 
amount that will be received. 

2.2.5. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are 
incurred except when it meets the criteria for capitalisation as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS 
23. 

2.2.6. Taxes 

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax. 

i. Current income Tax 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is 
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. 

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

48



Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 202 4 

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to 
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

ii. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting 
date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit 
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 

2.2.7. Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance 
Related Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the 
statement of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits &. other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the Company are on deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding Company. 
The post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits includes gratuity, provident fund, 
post- retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel concession. 

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to 
post employee & other long term Employee Benefits will be reimbursed to the holding Company on 
the basis of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of services 
rendered in the Company. 

The companies liability with respect to the long term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed 
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liability 
will be the responsibility of holding company. 

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long 
term employee benefits. 

2.2.8. Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change 
in value. 
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Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024 

2.2.9. Contingent liabilities &. contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may 
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount or 
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation 
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. 

2.2.10. Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

Short Term leases 

The company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a 
lease term of twelve months or less. The company recognises lease payments associated with these 
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

2.2.11. Financial instruments 

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

i. Financial assets 

a} Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing 
component, being measured at transaction price) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in statement of profit and loss. 

b} Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing 
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as: 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows 
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where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECl) model for recognising impairment loss on financial 
assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or 
other financial asset. 
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures 
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. 
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECl is used to provide for impairment loss. 

c) Derecognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition 
under Ind AS 109. 

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial 
liabilities. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

c) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

2.2.12. Fair value measurement 
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The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period . 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statementS. 
Such assets and liabilities are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value 
hierarchy. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

2.2.13. Earnings Per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted 
average 
number of shares outstanding during the period. 

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.2.14. Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% 
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.2.15. Significant accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, 
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or 
liabilities affected in future periods. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning 
out to be different than those originally assessed. 

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows: 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable's 
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 
deems not be collectible. 

ii. Contingencies 
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In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other clail11s 
against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all 
available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such 
obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no 
assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not 
expected that such contingencies will have material effect on its financial position of probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the 
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history, credit risk, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

iv. Taxes 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, 
and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising 
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could 
necessitate future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, 
based on reasonable estimates. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of 
significant estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be 
reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated 
events and circumstances that may occur. 

vi. Revenue recognition 

The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.2.4, is central to how the 
company values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require, assessments 
and judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements for long term 
project. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to 
underlying profitability and cash flow. 

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract: 
Determination of stage of completion 
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Estimation of project completion date 
Provisions for foreseeable loses 
Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and variations. 

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates. 
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Computers 

Gross C~rryin2 Amount (At Cost) 

'At I April 2022 1.67 

Additions -
Disposals/Adjustments (0.93) 

At31 March 2023 0.74 

At I April 2023 0.74 

Additions 

Disposals/Adjustments -
At 31 March 2024 0.74 

Depreciation and impai rment 

At I April 2022 1.28 

Depreciation charge for the year 021 

Disposals/Adjustments (0 .79) 

At 31 March 2023 0.70 

At I April 2023 0.70 

Depreciation charge for the year -
Disposals/Adjustments -

At 31 March 2024 0.70 

Net book value 

At 31st March 2024 ** 0.04 

At 31st March 2023 0.04 

PPE Disclosure 
Depreciation is provided based on useful life. 
Estimated useful life of assets are as follows: 

Class of Assets Useful lives as per 
Schedule II (in Years) 

Computers 3 

(Rs in Lakh) 

Total 

1.67 

-
(0.93) 

0.74 

0.74 

-

-
0.74 

1.28 

0.21 

(079) 

0.70 

0.70 

-

. 
0.70 

0.04 

0.04 

* Each significant component of the asset has been considered for determination of useful 
life of the assets 
•• As of 31 st March, 2024, the Property, Plant. and Equipment (PPE) is shown at scrap 
value This represents assets that have reached the end of their useful lives or have been 
deemed obsolete and are no longer in productive use within the company's operations The 
scrap value of these assets has been recognized in the financial statements. 
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4 Financial Assets 

4.1 Non-Current Financial Assets - Loans 

Particulars 

A. Considered Good: Secured 

Staff Loans and Advances 

Total (A) - Considered Good: Secured 

B. Considered Good: Unsecured 
Staff Loans & Advances 

Total (B) - Considered Good: Unsecured (i+ii) 

c. Significant Increase in Credit Risk (Deleted) 

D. Credi1lmpaired ( Deleted) 

Total 

4.2 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 

Interest Accrued on : 
- Advance to Staff 

Security deposit with MGVCL 

Contract Asset: 
- Billable Revenue I Receivable not due 

Total 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 3Ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

0.45 

0.45 

0.45 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 3Ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

0.19 

39.90 

80,713.26 84,296.91 

80,753.16 84,297.10 
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6 Other Non-Current Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 
a) Others 

Prepaid Expenses 

Total- Others 

As at 31st March 
2024 

0.35 

0.35 

(Rs in Lakh) 
As at 31st 

March 2023 
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7.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash in hand 
Cheques/drafts in hand 
Remittance in Transit 
Balances with banks * : 
- On current accounts 
- Flexi Accounts 
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

Foot Note 

(Rs in Lakb) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

165.12 3,362.47 

1,093.00 
1,258.12 3,362.47 

• lncIudes Rs 1258.12 lakhs (As at 31st March 2023 Rs 3362.47 lakhs ) held in Escrow account and Deposits which are earmarked funds as per 
concession agreement entered with NHAI. 

7.3 Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances 

Particulars 

Other Bank Balances * 
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 
months 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

3,121.00 

3,121.00 

• lncludes Rs 3121 lakhs (As at 31st March 2023 Rs Nillakhs ) held in Deposits which are earmarked funds as per concession agreement entered 
withNHAI. 

7.4 Current Financial Assets - Loans 

Particulars 

A. Considered Good; Secured 
Staff Loans and Advances 

B. Considered Good; Unsecured 
(i) Loans to Related Parties; 
(ii) Others; 
Staff Loans & Advances * 

Total 

* Details of amount due from Directors' 

Particulars 

Amount due from directors included in staff loans and advances 
Total 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

0.60 

0.60 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

- -
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7.5 Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 

Contract Asset : 
- Billable Revenue I Receivable not due 
-Money Withheld by Client 

Interest Recoverable on Financial Assets 

Interest Accrued on: 
FDR 
Total - Other Financial Assets - Good 

Considered Doubtful: Unsecured 
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Total 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

7,129.63 5,541 .85 
3,825.60 2,ll!U8 

1,158.16 1,316.38 

7.35 
12.120.74 8.976_61 

12.120.74 8.976.61 
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8 Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 

Current tax Assets (Net) 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid: 
Income Ta.x· (including TDS & Advance Tax ) 

Less: Provision for Tax 

Total 

(RsinL~ 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

80.53 143.97 

80.53 143.97 

(Rs in LakJJ) 

As a t 31st March 2024 As at 31st Ma rch 2023 

1,722.28 

(1,641.75) 

80.53 

903.26 
(759.29) 

143.97 
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9 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 
Advances Other than Capital Advances 
Advance Recoverable from: 
- Goods & Services Tax 

- Building Cess • 

Prepaid Expenses 

Total 

• It will be adjusted against future building cess liability of the Company. 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

5,587.70 
77.40 

3617 

5,701.27 

8,23206 
10471 

3311 

8,369.88 
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10 Equity Share capital 

Particluars 

Authorised share capital 
1,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each 
(1,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each as at ] 1 st March 2023) 

Issued/Subcribed and Paid up Capital 
1,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid 
(1 ,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid as at 31st March 201]) 

I 

Particulars 

S.No 

As at March 31, 2024 I 
2 

3 
4 
5 

Particulars 

S.No 

As at March 31,2023 1 
:1 
] 

4 
5 

(a) Dtt-a lll or shnrC!holdc" hQh..lin u m(In: lh nn 5% , bares In the Compan" 

Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period I year 

Promoter Name"" No. of shares 

Ircon International Limited and its 
1,00,00,000 

nommees 

Shares held by Promoter at the end or the period I year 

Promoter N arne'" No. or shares 

Ireo" Inlernational Limited and its 1,00,00,000 
nominees 

As at March 31, 2024 As ot March 31, 2023 
Name or the shareholder 

No. orShare 

Ircon IntematJOnaJ Limited and its nominees 1,00.00.000 

°/ .. holding in the 
class 

100.00% 

No.ofSha .. 

1,00.00.000 

0/. holding in the 
clASS 

100.00% 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As At 31st March As At 31 March 
2024 2023 

1,000.00 1,000 00 
1,000 00 1,00000 

1,00000 1,000 00 
1,000 00 1,00000 

% change during 
the period I year 

0/11 oHotal shares 

100.00% -

~o change during 
the period I year 

11/. of total shares 

100.00% . 

(b) Aggregate no. of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued ror considenltion other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately 
preceding the reporting date 

Equity shares alloted other than cash 

EqUity shares issued as bonus shares 
Equity shares Buy Back 

Totnl 

(c) Terms I Rights attl1ched to Equity Sh:lre-s : 

(i) Voting 

As at March 31, 
2024 

No. of Share 

As .t 31 MArch 
2023 

No. of Share 

The Company has only one class of equity shares ha\'lng a par \alue ofRs 10 per shJ.re Each holder of equity share IS entItled to ont: .. ote per share 

(ii) Liquidation 

In the e"ent of liqUidation of the Company. tht: holdel s of equity shares will be entitled to recen e remaming assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferentIal amOlints The 

distribution ~":11l be In proportIon to lhe nLlmber of equity shares held by the shareholders 

(iii) Dividend 

The diVidend proposed by the Board o fDlrectols IS subject to the appro\al of the sharehol ders In ensuing Annual General :\Ofeetlng 

(d) Reconciliation of the number or ~quity shnres and sh:lre c:tpital outstanding llt the beginning and 111 the end or the yenr 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

No orshnres (Rs in Lakh) No of shares (Rs in Lakh) 

Issued/Subcribed and Paid Up equity Capital outsatnding 
I 00.00,000 1.000 00 I 00,00.000 1,000 00 

at the be"lmning of the year 

Add: Shares Issued durmg the year -
Less: Shares Buy Back dunnl,,!; the year - - -
lssued/Subcribed and Paid Up equity Capital outstanding 

1,00,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,00,000 10.000.00 
at the end of the year 
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IRCO["\' VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN - tJ74999DL2018G0I334028 
Notes (orming part ofthe financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

11 Other Equity 

l'articulars 
Retained Earnings 
Other Reserve 

Total 

i) Movement as per below: 
(a) Retained Earnings 
Opening Balance 

Add: Ind AS Adjustments 
Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 

Closing Balance 

(b) Deemed Equity 
Opening Balance 

Add : Addition during the period 
Closing Balance 

Grand Total (a+b) 

ii) Natu re and Pu rpose of Other Reserves: 

(a) Retained Earnings 
Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company. 

(b) Deemed Equity 

As at 31st March 2024 

13,058.49 
19,574.00 

32,632.49 

8,246.68 

4,811.81 

13,058.49 

19,574.00 

19,574.00 

32,632.49 

(Rs in Lakh ) 

As A.t 31 March Z023 

8,246.68 
19,574.00 

27 820.68 

6,072.32 

2,174.36 

8,2-16.68 

16,918.00 
2,656.00 

19,574.00 

27,820.68 

The Company has received interest free loan from IRCON, Holding Company and is treated as Deemed Equity in terms of the definition 
of Equity as defined in the Concessional agreement entered by the Company with NHAI. 
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.IRCON V ADODARA KIM EXPRESSW A Y LIMITED 

,CIN - U74999DLlOl8G01334028 

Notes forming part or the rinaneial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

12 Non-Cul'Tent Liabililies - Financial Liabilities 

12.1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 
(Rs in L.khj 

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As atllst March 2023 

Unsrcllred: 
Loan from Ircon Intemational Limited' 

~ 
Loan from Bank of Baroda •• 

Total 

Notes: 
,., Un-Secured Loan from mCON 
Terms & Conditions of Loan from Holding Company (Ireon International Limited) 

l. Sanction :-Rs 6896 Lakh 

6,89600 6,89600 

55,17200 62,068.00 

62,06$,00 68,954,00 

(I) Interest rate to be charged on the loan was revised from Bank of Baroda [ month MCLR without Strategic Premium to Bank 

of Baroda overnight MCLR without Strategic Premium plus 0 09% w e f 27092023 

(ii) Duration or loan Disbursement would be a period of 1 year from the date ofsigmng ofagrrement 

(iii) Unsecured Loan shall be repaid in 2 5 years starting after 12 years from COD or repayment of full term loan of senior 

lendor, whichever is earlier in structured half-yearly installmenlS 

(iv) Interest to be calculated on monthly rest basis 

... Secured Loan from Bank of Ba.-oda 
Terms & Conditions of Loan from BankorBaroda 
Sandion :-72412 Lakh 
(i) Interest rate to be charged on the loan was revised from Bank of Baroda 1 month MCLR without Strategic Premium to Bank 
of Baroda overnight MCLR without Strategic Premium plus 0 09% w e f 27092023 Presently 8 14% P a payable on Monthly 
rests as at 31 OJ 2024 
(ii) Moratorium of7 months from the date ofCDD The Company achieved provisional completion certificate i e Provisional 
CDD_ On request ofIrconVKEL, Bank of Baroda made the subsequential shift in repayment schedule on 01 11 .2022 The next 
repayment Schedule has started we f28 03 2024 and last installment on 28 0) 20)) 

(iii) Term loan shall be repaid in 21 half yearly installments 

(iv) Interest shall be paid as and when debited 

(v) Corporate Guarantee of the Promoter i e, MIs IRCON International Limited (AAA Rated) has been released by Bank of 
Baroda vide No Objection Lener dated 25 ,05 2023 

(vi) The loan shall be secured by-

(a) A first mortgage and charge in favour of the Lenders/Security Agent for the benefit of the Lenders In a fonn satisfactory to the 
Lenders, of all the Borrower's immovable properties, ifany both present and future, save and except Project Assets; a first 
charge in favour ofLenderl Security Agent for the benefit of the Lenders orall the Borrower's moveable properties, both present 
and future, save and except the Project Assets 

(b) A first charge on all the Borrower's tangible movable assets, including movable plant and ma.chinery, machinery spares, tools 
and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, all other movable assets and current assets, both present and future, save and except 
the Project Assets 

(c) A first charge on all the bank accounts including but not limited to the Escrow Account opened in a designated bank and 
DSRA to be established by the Company, where all cash flows from the Project shall be deposited, and the sub Account (or any 
account in substitution thereot) that may be opened in accordance with this agreement and supplementary Escrow Agreement or 
any other Project Agreement, provided such first charge shall only be to the extent permined as per the waterl'all of priorities 
prescribed under Escrow Agreement and Concession Agreement; 

(d) A fil'3t charge on all revenues and receivables of the Borrower from the Project or Otherwise, Project's book debts, operating 
cash flows, commissions or revenues of whatever nature, after such revenues and receivables are deposited in the Escrow 
Account Provided that such charge as mentioned herein shall arise only after the proceeds andlor realization on any such 
revenues and receivables are credited to and enters the Escrow Account and thereafter shall only be utilized to the extent 
permitted as per the waterfall pTiorities under the Escrow Agreement and Concession Agreement 

(e) AsSignment of contr;]ctor guarantees. liquidated damages, leLter of credit. guarantee or performance bond that may be 

prOVided by any counter party under any project agreement or contract In favor of company and Insurance policies etc: 

(f) A first charge by way of assign mentl agreement 10 favor of lenders over all the ngills, title and interests of the Borrowers 

related LO the Project from all contracts, Insurances. licenses In to and under all Project Agreement (including the Concession 
Agreement) \0 which the Borrower IS party to mcluding contractor guarantees liqUidated damages, letter of credit, 
performance bond. guarantee and all other contracts relating to the Project. proVided 5uch charge shall be limited to and to afls~ 
to the extent proVided under Substitution .-\greemem; 

(g) A first charge/asslgnmentlsecunty Interest on company rights under concession agreement In fa\or of lenders of all fights, 
title. rnterests, benefils, claims. uncalled caprtal and demands whatsoe .... er of com pan) in :my letter of credit. perfoTnmnce bond , 
guarantee pro\ rded by any party to project documents: 

(h) A first charge on JOtanglble assets ofborrov .. er but not llOuted to goodwill present and future save and except the Project 

Assets PrOvided that any realization there of shall be credited to the Escrow Account and the charges as aforesaid shall be 
limited to the extent permissible under the water fall pnonties of the Concession Agreement and the Escrow Agreement, 

(I) ASSignment o fall <lpplicable Insurance poliCies 

12.2 Non-Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities 
(Rs in Lakh) 

P:Jrticul.aI"S 
As at 31st March 202-1 As at 31st March 2023 

Interest Accrued on loan but not due ,., 90183 395<)5 

Total 90 l.H 395.95 

~ Interest on Unsecured Term Loan taken Loan from [ReON 
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Notes rorming part or the financial statements ror the year ended 31st March 2024 

13 Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

13. 1 Current Financial Liabilities - Short Term Borrowings 

Particulars 

Current Maturities of Long Tel111 Debt Loan from Bank of Bar ada (Refer Note No 12 1) 
Total 

13.2 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables 

Particulars 

(A) Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 

(8) Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 
(i) Contractor & Suppliers 
(ii) Related Party - IReON 

Total 

Notes: 

(R. In Lll"!!l 

As at J1st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

3.44800 
6.896,00 J.H8.0Q --

! Itt In .... kI.!.t 
As at llst March 2024 As at llst March 2023 

758 
48087 

488,45 

5047 

901 
3,24962 

3)09.10 

a) Disclosures as required under Companies Ac:t, 20131 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (MSMED) are provided in Note 32 
b) Tenns and Conditions and other balances with related parties are disclosed in Note 27 

Trade payables Ageing Schedule 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

.md small en t~rtlnSieS 
DisDuted dues of micro enterpri.5es and small enterprises 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterorLSe5 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterorises 

Disputed dues. of micro enternrises andsmalll!D.t.emri.s.cs 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterpnses 

13.3 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities 

Particnla rs 

Interest Payable on Advance from Client 

Deposits. Retentlon mont!y and .\![oney Withheld - Related Party­
IRCO~ 

Interest Accrued on loan but not due· 
Otht!r P.l\ables (lilcludlng StatT [>J.vJ.blt!) 

Total 

Un billed 

487 

Vnbilled 

90[ 

.. Interest Accrued On loan but not due on term loan taken from Bank of Baroda 

Not Due 

Not Due 

IlU in L.kl,) 
Ontstaru;liflO ror the vear ended March 31. 2024 rrom the due date of avment 

Less (ha n 1 yea r 1-2 year 3 years More than J year Total 

48358 488.45 

IR. in t.khl 
Outstandine for the vear ended March 31. 2023 from the due date of avrnent 

Less than 1 year 1-2 year 3 yean: More than 3 year Total 

5047 
50.47 

3.24962 3,258.63 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

11858 

13 80 

242.38 

13461 

I~ 7:! 

[99.33 
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CIN - U74999DL2018G0I334028 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

14 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

a) Contract Liability 

Advance from clients 

b) Other Advances 

Advance from others 

c) Others 

Statutory dues 

Total 

Notes: 

(Rs in Lakh) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

48.87 32.70 

48.87 32.70 

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund and other statutory dues. 
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Notes forming part ofthe financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

15 Revenue from Operations 

Particulars 

Contract Revenue (Refer Note No. 32 & 34) 

Total 

16 Other Income 

Particulars 

Interest Income: 

Interest on Staff Advances 

Interest on Refund of Income-tax 

Interest Income on Financial Assets 

Bank Interest 

Others : 

Other Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

For the year ended 31st 
March 2024 

4,298.92 

4,298.92 

For the year ended 31st 
March 2024 

6.48 

12,529.95 

35.83 

0.03 

12,572.29 

(R. in LDkh ) 

For the year ended 31st 
March 2023 

20,544.00 

20,544.00 

For the year ended 31st 
March 2023 

0.19 

32.35 

7,32300 

O. \3 

7,355.67 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

17 Project and Other Expenses 

Particulars 
Foot 
Note 

Project E~pense8 
Work Sub-Contract 
Other Work Expenses 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
Independent Engineer Inspection Charges 
R~nl - Non-residential (i) 

Rmcs and Taxes 
Veb.icle Operation and Maintenance 
Insurance 
Travelling & conveyance 
Printing & stationery 
Legal & Professional charges 
Advertisement & pUblicity 
Bank Charges 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Sub-total (A) 
Other Expenses 
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note -36) 
Auditors remuneration (ii) 
Sub-total (8) 

Total (A + B) 

(i) Rent paid to IRCON Rs 2.81 Lakh ( Rs 2.55 Lakh) excluding GST 

(ii) Pavm~nt to latu torv Audi to rs; 

Pa rticulars 

(a) Audit Fee - current year 
(b) Tax Audit Fees - current year 
(c) Fee for Quarterly Limited Review 
(d) Certification Fees 
(e) Travelling & out of pocket expenses: 

- Travelling Expenses 
- Out of Pocket Expenses 

Total 

( Rsin Lakh) 

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 
March 2024 March 2023 

3,305.67 18,463.87 
57.98 756.15 

474.86 218.70 
32.97 74.54 

3.31 3.01 
0.14 0.15 
0.09 -

132.83 164.87 
0.60 1.01 
0.18 -
9.05 16.14 
- -

0.32 0.21 
0.30 0.67 

4,018.30 19,699.32 

73.40 54.11 
1.87 1.65 

75.27 55.76 

4,093.57 19,755.08 

(Rs in Lakh) 

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 
March 2024 March 2023 

0.96 
0.28 
0.53 
0.10 

1.87 

0.88 
0.27 
0.45 
0.05 

1.65 
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18 Employee Benefits Expenses 

IRs in L'tI k1l) 

Pa rticu la rs Foot Note 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 

March 2024 March 2023 

Salaries, wages and bonus 86.12 107.32 
Contribution to provident and other funds 10.62 10.49 
Retirement Benefits 9.04 15.81 
Staff Welfare - -

Total 105.78 133.62 

19 Finance Cost 

Particulars Foot Note For the year ended 31st March 2024 

Interest Expense on Income Tax 0.24 

Other Borrowing Cost 

- Bank Guarantee & Other Charges 279 

Interest on Loan from fRCON 562 .78 
Interest on Loan from Bank of Baroda 5,351 79 
Interest Exp on Mob Advance received from -NHAl 
Interest on Others to Ircon 29881 

Total 6,216.41 

20 Depreciation, amortization and impairment 
(Ib lnLnkh 

Pa rticulars 
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st 
March 2024 March 2023 

Property, Plant and equioment - 0.21 
Total - 0.21 

(Rs in Lakh) 

For the year ended 31st March 2023 

27.72 

0.25 

419.08 
4,449.48 

17517 
-

S,07L70 
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IIlCON VAIlOIlARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LlMITEI) 
ClN - 1I749991lL2018G0l334028 

NOlcj !'cHliling pilrt of the financilJl stolemcnts fUI- the year CIlUI'U 31st March 202-1 

Null': - 21 

A. FlIi r VlIluc Ml'usurcl1Icnts 

(i) ('i1ll'~()ry wise c1l1ssilication ofFinanciul Instruments 

Fmam:wl a::.::.cts and flnanclallietbilities arc m~<lSlllcd at !'cur vallie In these rlll;JnClai slatcmenl.lI1d arc group~d into three levels ofa fair value hierarchy The three Levels arc defined based on the observability of significant Inputs to the measurement, 
~LS f~lllo\'~:-. 

I c\cI I ()uotcd pi tces (unadjusted) in active Ill,H kcls rut ldcntil'al assets 01 lii-lbtllllc::. 

I C\cl ~ IllPLltS lllhcr than quoted prices mcluded wllhlll Ll!vcl I 111m 'Ile ObSCI "flble for the osset or litlbility, either directly or indirectly 
Lnd J 1I110hscrvOlbic InpulS fOJ the asset or IHibility 

1I) I Ill' r.1I1 yll1g VLllul:S und fair values of linanciH\ Insllul1lCnLS by r.:atcgOllcs <I:' • .IL :; 1 st March , ::!024 are as follows: 

J' nrlil.!u lllf li 

l :-r J u:.m~ llI l l\.uc~ ut fut r VAluC' Through (·ruri l ll 'ld Lnss (1IIVnJ . : ) 

Ill\c~tllll'lli HI Mutual Funds 
' .'li lli l 

FhHHH,:ilH Assets :.1 Amortiz~d Cost 
t iJ J m~:JtHtctu~ 

{1I11 ,L.llht 

Ili ll othel Financial Assets 

THt ul 

Particulu rs 

1:111 t1I1t' lid Lial>ilitics lit Amurtized Cost 
(il llUIIO\\lIlg~ 
(Id Otlll:r Fin~mcli:ll Liabilities 

l\ ulll 

b) Till: c..::Ulymg values and follr values of financiallnstrul11l!nts by cutCgUllcs <is i1! 31 March, ~023 are as follows : 

r';lrliculgrs 

Fin lludnl Assets at fuir Value , 'hrougil Jlrufit anu lo~s (' F'VTPL'l 

Hwc~I UlC'UI In MlItliCiI Funds 

'I ul ill 

FilUlI .... ·hll Assets ut Amortized Cost 
\ 1) 111\l:stmcnts 

111) LU;'lIls 

t ill ) Olhl!1 Fmanclal Assets 

I UIl11 

(Its in .... kll 
Fair V.uJue 

Cnrryin~ Value Levell Level 2 L"".13 

92.873 .90 ,)~.873 90 
92,873.90 9l,IJ73_90 

Fuir Value 

Carrvlne V.lue Levell Levell Level 3 

68.96400 63.964 00 

1. 144.21 1, 14421 

70, 108.2 1 10,108.21 

Fair Vtdue 
Carryin2 Valu. Level l Level 2 Level 3 

105 105 

1)3.273 71 1}3.273 71 

93,17~ .76 93,27~ .76 
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POI'tlculu.". Fair Value 

C.r~'ln" V. lu. Levell 

Jo'l uuu(l ul Lillbilities tit Amortb:ed Cost 
(I) Borrowings 72,41200 
'u) Olilci Financial LiDbiliries S9HS 
Totul 73,007.28 

I he 1Ili.IIH1gement tisstssed rhat cash and cash equivalents, trade recclvlJblt:s, luuJe payabJes, bank overdrafts and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-tenn 

nWl'lIJ Illes ul these Instruments 

Til..: rail" viJlut! of the t'lOaficl:.1 nsseu Hnd li abil ities IS Included ell the amount Cil which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. 
DUring the limmcm\ )e4Ir ~u!3- :!4 nod 2022-23, there were no transfers between Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. 

lJ . Fiullm:illl Risk MllnMgemenl 

( Ib in L"kh) 

Level 2 Loyol~ i 

72,41200 ' 
59528 ' 

7J.007.~8 I 

TIll.! Company's pnm:lp,,1 financial liabilities comprise bmIJt)~V1 Il~"' , lrudt: and other payables. The Company's principal financi lll b)!J.cLS include loans to (elated parties, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-hmn deposits that derive 

(li rCf.:l ly li'om its 0f~ruuuns . The Company also holds mvetnn\~I"1 I I1_ mulual funds and lax ti'ee bonds. The Company's activ ities expose it to some of the fmlmclnl risks: market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk . 

:oj MHrkct Ri.k 
Mwkcl Iisk IS the risk that the fai r value of future cash flows of a flIHlIlCIi.11 Instruments will fluctuate because o f changes in market prices Market risk comprises Foreign currency risk and Interest nue risk Financial instruments affected by market 

I lSI\. Includt:s bOlrowlngs, trade receivables. trnde payable and othel non derivative finanCial instruments 

(i) FOl'eign Currency Risk 

Nil 

(ii) Interest R1Ite Risk 
Inte rest rate risk IS the risk that the fair value o f future cash tlows of a fimmclal Instruments will nuctuate because of change in market interest rate The company manages its intere!;t risk in accordance with the companies pol iCies and risk 
ob.lt:cllve Financial Inslruments affected by 1I1terest nile fisk lOcludcs lax free bonds and deposits with banks Interest rate risk on these financial instrwnents are very low as interest rate is fixed for the period offinancialmstruments Also, the 
('oml)llny IS eLiI rently haVing borriwmgs With floating ra te of Interest, however the Company is entitled to receive interest on annuity payments which are also f1oating/vBriabe in nature, hence the risk is minimised to large extent 
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b) Credil Risk 

rhe Comp:.my':i t.:lIstomcr protile IS National Highway AlUhorlly of Indm Al:\:oldin~ly. the Company's customer credit risk is low The Company's average project execution cycle is around 24 to 36 months, General payment teons Include 

1lIohll,s<llllln advance, monthly progress payments \Vllh a credit period r:.lngmg from 45 La 60 days and certain retention money [0 be released at the end of the project In some cases retentions are substituted with bank I corporate guarantees The 
(\)II1!l'.II1), has a dCloiled review rnel:hanlsm of overdue CuslOll1C, lC!ccivablcs i.1l vallOUS levels within organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation 

T .. ,u.le "nu other receivllble 

rhe COlllI·JilllY'S exposure to credit risk IS inflllcm;cu mainly by the II1divu.iLlul Ch.ul:lcll!nSLJcs of each customer The demographics of the customer, including the default risk orthe industry and country in which the customer operates, also has lin 
IIlllucru.:c 011 CI edit 115k assessment 

Expusure tu Credit Risk 

1 1 1 1 1 " h' ll l L1 I '~ 

1111unda l Assets ror which nlluwnnce is meusur~d using Liretimc EXllCctcd 
Cledit Lusses (LECL) 
NOll (\lIlcllllnvcsllllt!nts 
NOli CUIIl.!nt Luans 
Oltlel Non Current Financial Assets 
CUllenllll\ocstmcnlS 
L'i.lsh ~1I 1 t1 Cash Equivalents 
Othel Balik: l3aJl.1nc~s 
(\111 elll t ouns 

Olhcl CUlient Financial Assets 

FinuncillJ Assets fur which l1J1owonce is meusurt!t1 using Simplified 
Appro.Jcll 

'r lade R~celvables 
t 'Qnll '~I\';~ \ S!tc!l:i 

SIIIIIHlUI' V uf ch:tfl~( in loss ullowKnces meu!ured u$in~ Sillll>lificd uUllToach 

l·U I',i cu lIlC'f 

Opening Alluwnnccs 

Plovldcd during tht! year 
UtiliZaLIOn durmg the year 
Amoulll wnllen-otl" 
(, ' I Q"'i ll~ Allowunces 

SUIIIIIIIU-) ' uf' duJIIge in 105s allowu.nces mensured usi l1~ Lirctimc I!:x~ted Credit Loucs lLa::CL) 3PI,rD!lI:h 

t';U'I i4:ul:J l lI: 

Opening Allowllnccs 

III oVldcd dlll mg the yt!ar 
Ulill/cuion dUring lhe year 
Amount wllllen-ofl' 

1 b"h."'~" Oll,n) I Loss 
l' lulIl rlLi Al luWit I1 Cl!.,'$ 

A, At 31.03.2024 

80,753 16 

1.258 12 
3,12100 

12,12074 

1,23760 
7.12963 

A. At 31.03.2024 

A.. A1 31.03.2024 

A. ut 31.03,2023 
! R. in L.UJdl l

l 

045 
84.297 10 

3,36247 

060 
8,976,61 

1175 
5.54 1.115 

A.' ot 3t.03.2mJ] 

A •• t 31.03.20231 

-I 
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No slglllticant dUlnges in estimation techntques 0 1 asslImpuons were made during the reportiny period During the year, the Company has recognised loss allowance ofRs Nil (Nil) 

c) Li(.luidity risk 

The COlllp;my Illa n~ges liquidity risk by maintain ing slitlicient (,;ush and nUII'kel .ltllc securities and by having access to funding through un .adt'quute amount 0 1 comnnttetl crcrdit lineso The treasury dcp:Jrtm~n t regularly monitors the position of Cash and 
Cash EqUI valents Vis-a-VIS projectionso Assesslllcnl of maturity protilcs of t'lIuuu':lul assets and financial liabilities and maintennnct of Balance Sheet liquidi ty mUM tlr~ considered while reviewing, the: liquidity po~ition o 

The ('olllpany's Investment policy and strategy are foclIsed on prescrvaLlon or capital and sLlPP0t1ing the Company's liquidity requirements The senior Management of the Company oversees its investment strategy and achieve its investment 
ob.leCllves 10he ('oll1puny typically Invests In govel nlllent of India debt bonds nnd mutual funds The policy requires investments generally to be investment grade, with the primary objective of minimising the potential risk of principal loss 

r he NIIAI bunds beal a fIxed lale of mleresllilus Ihey are nol all<clcd by Ihe ch.n~e in bond yield rates and the mutual funds are highly liquid assets which .re paid oUt monthly and re-invested 

01 hI.! L~lble below provldt!s delails regal ding the significant financial ilabilitlt!s us ut 31 March 20J.4 and 31 March 2023 

' ~lIt, t ic l lhl j's 

ilOllUWll1gS 
, II u«.il!" payables 
Ulhel finunclal liabilities 

i>urticuh.1l'S 

lhm"'J)WII1,l;;" 

TI ade nawbles 
Other financ ial liabil ities 

u... than I Vror 
6,896 00 

48845 
24238 

iAo.u lb.lln I VC'll r 

3,448_00 
3,309_10 

199_33 

A. on 31st Morch. 2024 
1-1 )'t on 

<>,HYuUO 

A. on 31 March. 2023 
1-2 )''':s ra 

<>,K96 00 

(R. in Lakh) 

2 Ycurs liud uoo'\'c 
55,1 7::'00 

(R. ill Lukll) 

! Vt .ll. r.t. and abnvc 
62,06800 
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d) [:\.l' l'S!rIive risk concentration 

ConL:l'll ti allons allse when a number of countcrpanu:s are engaged In slinliar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 
; lllh~ ll'd b~: dwnges in economiC, political or other conditions t'onccntrallons indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry 

(111)1 dCI to iJVOId excessIve concentrations o'frisk. the Company's policll~s amJ procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance ora diversified portfolio Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed 
i.ICCOId lllgly 

I he 1i:)J!O\vlng table gives details in respect of revenues generaled from projects 

.'-lI." ........... 
j l)"rticulllrs For the year ended 31.03.2024 For the yeor ended 31 .03.2023 

Kl,\\! huc !'reull Pt'll'C~ I !I 4.29892 20.544 ()() I 
4.298.92 20.544.00 I 

C. Ca pilol Munagement 

The Company objective to manage its capital in n manner to ensure and safeguard their abililY to continue as a going concern so that the Company csn continue to provide maximum returns to shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders. The 
Comp,n)' has paid diVIdend as per the guidelines "sued by Department of Investment and Public Asset Management (DIPAM) os follows :. 

UividemJs :- f lO in (..nkh 

":'I'lit.::ll ll1f" J 3 (-Mar-241 31-Mar-23J 
J)1\'.}i..'n,r Plud I J I 
11i1U1 - I - I 

FlIllh~l . th\! Cumpany manages its capital structure to make adJllstments 10 light of changes In economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants 

Debt I'., ui h ' Ratio :- (lU in I..kll l 
1"},lflkul_l.Il's 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 
BOIllmlll!.!s(NolCNo I:! 1 & 131) 68.964 ()() 72A12 00 

Lonl! 'I CI III Debt 68.964.00 72.412.00 
l.tIHtI ! ~Hh: N,'1 IVI 1.0()()()() 1.000 00 
Olh", E<JOliIV INote No III 32.632.49 77.82068 

rutal Elluitv 33.632.49 28.820.68 
Debt E(Juitv R .. tio 2.05 2.51 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EX PRE SSW A Y LIMITED 
CIN - V74999DL2018G0I334028 
Notes rorming part ofthe financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

22 Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

(I) Contingent Liabilities: 

Di..,ID<ure ofContull~. rrt Liabilities as per Ind AS 37 'Pro\l5lons, ConCLn""m LLabilities and CMnoltrnl M"'L" Dft .. UJ'Id~ (Ib in La khj 

Particulars 
Asat31st Addition during 

Claims 
Asat31st 

settled/paid Foot Note 
March 2023 the year March 2024 

during the year 

a) Claims against the company not acknowlediZed as debts 

Disputed Indirect Tax Demands I 8.59487 10,51147 19,11634 

(b) Guarantees excludimz financial ~zuarantee - - -

Foot Note: 

Disputed Indirect Tax Demands 
The Company has received an Order for the period March 2019 to March 2022 against the submissions made to Show cause cum demand notice 
from DOGl i e GST Authorities issued In the prior years confinning the demand mentioned in the said show cause Notice agamst which the 
company has pre-deposited a portLon of the disputed tax demand as per applicable GST Laws as mentLoned in the below table The company has 
filed an Appeal dated 30 04 2024 against the demand raised by GST authoritIes and IS cWTently pending before the Learned Conunissioner 
(Appeals) GST Based on the grounds of submission as reply, the management believes that there is reasonable strong likelihood of succeeding 
before the authorities Pending the final decision on the above, no adjustment has been made in the financial statements. Further, lnterest will be 
payable at the appropriate rate once the demand is confimed 

(II) Contingent Assets: NIL 

23 Commitments: 

a) EstLmated amount of contracts remainmg to be executed on capital account (net of advances) IS Rs NIL(NIL). 

b) Other Commitment.: 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be accounted for, on other commitments is Rs 3,608 86 Lakh (Rs 7,329 23 Lakh). 

24 (a) Balances with NHAI (Chent) is subject to confmnation / reconciliation! adjustment, if any_ The Company has been sending letters fOT 
confirmation to parties However, the Company does not expect any material dispute w r t the recoverability/payment of the same 

(b) In the opinIon of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on realization in the ordinary course of business, will not be 
less than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet 

(c) TDS Receivable amount for the quarter ended 31 st March, 2024 1S subject to reconciliation as TDS Deductors have not filed their TDS returns 
whose due date is currently 31 st May 2024 

25 (a) Foreign exchange recognised in the statement of profit and loss NIL 
(b) Disclosure of unbedged foreign currency exposure - NIL 
(c) Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis) NIL 
(d) Expenditure m foreign currency (on accrual basis) NIL 
(e) ClF value of Imports: NIL 
(0 Material & store consumed: NIL 

26 Disclosure regarding Leases: 

I. Company as a Lessee: 

The Company as a lessee has entered into lease contracts, which includes lease of office space Before the adoption ofInd AS 116, the Company 
classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as an operating lease 

The Company also has certain leases of offices with lease terms of 12 months or less The Company applies the' short-term lease' recognition 
exemptions for these leases 

The Company's leasmg arrangements are in respect of operatmg leases ofpremJses for offices leasmg arrangement IS cancellable and is usually 
renewable on mutually agreed terms The amounts of lease payments dunng the year are as under 

(a) Lease payments In respect oroffice premises Rs.3.31 Lakh (Rs 301 Lakh) - (mcluded in Project expenses Note 16) 

II. Company as a Lessor: NIL 

27 Segment Reporting: 

(i) General Inrormation 

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for \ .. hlch discrete financial mformatlon IS a .... allable which IS being e ... aluated 
regularly by the ChlefOperatmg DeciSIon .\tlaker (rOOM) m decldmg how to allocate resources and assessmg performance The Board of 
Directors of the Company IS the ChlefOperat1Og DeCISion .\-Iaker (COOM) The Company IS engaged 10 the business or mfrastructure 
development In the state of GUJarat and the Chief Operating DeciSion Maker (COOrVI) monItors the operatmg results of the bUSIness as a single 
segment. hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed In accordance With the requirements of (nd AS ! 08 

(ii) (nformation about geographical information 

As the Company operates in a smgle geographical segment I e India hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed 

(iii) Inrormation about major customer 

Revenue of Rs. 4,298.92 Lakhs are derived from a Single customer I e NHAI which IS more than 100
/0 of the Company's total revenue 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN - U74999DL2018G0I334028 
Notes forming part or the financial sta tements ror the year ended 31st March 2024 

28 Related Party disclosures: 
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are as under: 
List of Related Parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships. 

a) Enterprises where control exists: 
(i) Holding Companies: -

Ircon lntemational Limited (lRCON) - TI,e entire Equity Share Capital of the Company is held by Ircon International Limited 
(IRCON) Holding company. 

b) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Board of Dirr<lors 

Name 
Shri Parag Venna 
Shri Masood Ahmad 
Ms Ritu Arora 
Ms Aradhana Garg 

Silri Rohit Parmar 
Silri R K JaiswaI 

Designation 
Director 
Director 
Director upto 16. I I 2023 
Director w e.f23 .01 2024 

Director upto 24 04.2024 
Director w_e.f30 .04.2024 

Other Members identified as Key Management Personnel ( KMP) 

Name Designation 
Sllri Nitesh Kumar G Asati Chief Executive Officer 
Silri Rai Kumar Chief Financial Officer 

Company Secretary 

Name 
Ms Shivi Kaooor 
Sh Shashwat Chaudhary 

Remuneration to Key management personnel are as under: 

S.No. Particulars 2023-24 
[ Short Term Employee Benefits 

IT Post Employement Benefits 
([I Other Long Term Employee Benefits 
IV Termination Benefits 
V Sitting Fees 

TOTAL 

(Rs In Lukh) 
2022-23 

60.87 5362 
573 507 
772 711 

-
- -

74.32 65.80 

IrconVKEL had Part-time Directors during the financial year 2023-24. nominated on the Board by the Holding Company. do not draw any remuneration from the Company 
No sitting fee is paid to Part- time Directors. 

(c) Related Party Transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2024 

(Rs in !..al,hl 
Transactions 

Transactions During the 
S.No. Particular Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship During the F. Y 2023 

24 
F."\ 2022-23 

I 
Intere't free advance provided by [RCON 
to IrconVKEL Ircon [ntemational Limited Holdine ComDany 2.656 00 

2 
Unsecured loan provided by [RCON to 
IrconVKEL Ircon [ntemationa[ Limited Holdine Companv - 3.44800 

3 Interest paid/payable Ircon International Limited Holdin!! lompanv 861 59 ~ 19 08 
~ Purchase of Goods and Services Ircon International Limited Holdin" Company 3.83851 I Q,438 72 
5 Office Rent Ircon International Limited Holding Company 3 31 3 01 

Reimbursement of PF/Pension 
6 conrriblltion. BG charges. other expen,e, & 

statT advance etc to I RCON IIeon Intemmional Lil11ltl!d HoldiIl!.! COlTIoall\· 23 58 5607 
7 Sale of Laptop Ircon International Limited Holdin1! COlTIoanv - o 16 
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Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows: 

(Il$ in Lnkb ) 
Outstanding 

Outstanding Amount as at S.No. Particular Name of Related Party Nature of Rei. tionship Amount as at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

r 
Investment in Equily of Ircon VKEL by 
IRCON Ircon Intem.tiooal Limited Holdin" ComDanv 1.000.00 I .()O()00 

2 Interest free advance provided by IRCON 
to IrconVKEL Ircon International Limited HoldinJ! Companv 19.57400 19.57400 

3 Unsecured loan provided by IRCON to 
IrconVKEL Ircon International Limited Holding Company 6.89600 6.896.00 

4 Interest paid/payable on Loan Ircon International Limited Holding Company 901.83 395.95 
5 T llIde Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 480.87 3.24962 

6 Deposits. Retention money and Money 
Withheld Ircon International Limited Holdin" Companv 22858 18461 

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
(i) TllInsactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 
(ii) Outstanding balances of related parties at the reporting date are unsecured and settlement occ= through banking transactions. 

29 During the year, the Company has carried out assessment on impairment of individual assets by working out the recovelllble amount based on lower of the net realisable value 
and carrying cost in terms oflnd AS 36, "Impairment of Assets" notified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendment Rules 2016. Accordingly, impairment loss ofRs Nil has been provided for." 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
erN - V74999DL2018G0l334028 
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

30 Earnings Per Share 
Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per share' 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders after considering the effect of dilution by weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the diluti ve potential equity 
shares into equity shares. 

(i) Basic and diluted earnh,gs pe r share (in Rs ) 
Particulars For the year For the year 

Note ended ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 202 

Profit attributable to Equity holders (Rs in Lakh) (ii) 4,811.81 2, 174.3 
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS (iii) 1,00,00,000.00 L,OO,OO.OOO.O 
Earnings per share (Basic) 48.12 21.7 
Earnings per share (Diluted) 48.12 21.7 
Face value per share 

(ii) Profit attributable to eq uity shareholders (used as numerato r) (Rs.lakhs) 
Particulars For the year For the year 

ended ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 202, 

Profit for the vear as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs in Lakh) 4,811.81 2. 174.3 
Profit attributable to Equity holders of the companv used for computing EPS: 4,811.81 2,174.3 

(iii) Weighted avcrage number of eq ui ry shares (used as de.nomin ator) (Nos.) 
Particulars For the year For the year 

ended ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 202. 

Opening balance of issued equity shares 1.00,00,000.00 1,00,00,000.0 
Equity shares issued during the y ear 
Wei~hted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 1,00.00.000.00 1.00.00,000.0' 
Dilution Effect: 
Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS 1,00,00,000.00 1.00,00,000.01 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN - LJ74999DL2018G01334028 
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st [\Olarch 2024 

31 Disclosure under Ind AS-19 on Employee benefits 

The persons working for Ircon Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited are posted on nomination! secondment basis from IRCON (Holding Company). 

The provision for Retirement Benefits of nominated employees in tenns of Ind AS-19 is being made by its Holding company as per accounting policy (Note No 2_2.7) 

Provident Fund Contribution of the employees on nominationlsecondment have been regularly deposited by the holding company with its P F Trust. 

32 Disclosure under [od AS-US on Revenue from contracts with Customers'" 

(a) Disaggregation of Revenue 
Below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with clistomers: 

(IUinLnkh) 
For the year ended March 31, 2024 

Typ~ of eoods or service Railwavs 1 Hiehway 1 Electrical I Building 1 Others 1 Total 
Timing of satisfaction of performance 
obligation: 
Over time - 1 4,29892 1 1 - I 1 4,29892 

At ap2int in time - I 1 - I 1 1 -
Total - I 4,298.92 I - I - 1 - I 4,29892 
Method for measuring performance 
oblieation: 
Input method I 4,29892 1 - I I I 4,?989? 

Output method - I - I - I - 1 - I 
TOt91 - I 4.298.92 I - I - 1 - I 4.?9892 
Geoeraphical markets: 
Domestic I 4.298 92 I - I 1 I 4.29892 
International - I I - 1 - I - I 
Total - I 4,298.921 - I - I - I 4.29892 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 
Type of !,oods or service RaiJwavs I Highwav I Electrical I Building I Others I Total 
Timing of satisfaction of performance 
obliJ!ation: 

Over time - 1 20,544.00 1 - I - I I 20.544.00 

At a point in time - J I - I - I - I 
Total - I 20,544 UO I - I - I I 20.544.00 

Method ror measuring performance 
oblieation: 

Input method - I 20,544.001 I - I - I ?0.54400 

OUlPU! method - I - I I - I - I 
Total - I 20.54400 I I - I - I 20.544_00 

Geoeraphical markets: 
Domestic - I 20,54400 I I - I - J 20,544.00 

International - I - I I - I - I 
Total - 1 20,54400 I - I - I - I 20.54400 

(b) Contract Balances: 
(R< in lakh) 

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 
Trade Receivables (Note 7 I) 1.23760 II 75 

Contract Assets (Not< 4 2 & 7 5) 91.66849 91.95714 

Contract Liabilities -
(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the l..:lIstomer pro tile is ~ational Highway Authority of India The Company's average project e~ecution l..:ycle is arollnd 24 to 

36 months General payment tenns include mobilisation ad\ance" monthly prot,'Tess payments with a credit period ranging: from 45 to 60 da} $ 

(ii) Contrjl~t ,-\ssets ,ne reCOb'lllsed 0\ cr the peliod in which .sen ices are perfoLlned to represent the Company's nght to consideration III c\:l..:il<lngt: for goods 01 sen Kes 

trans fen-cd to the customer It mcludes balances due from clistomelS under construction contracts that arise when the Company rccei\t!s pa)l1lents trom cllstomers as per 

tenns of the contracts however rhe I"e\ enLLe is recognised 0\ er the period under input method Any amount ple\ 101lsl~ recot,.'l1ised as a contract [lsset IS reclassified to U<ldc 

rece1\ables on satIsfaction ofthc condition attached I e futlue sen ice ,\hich is neccss3l) to achie\e the billing milestone 
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( Rs in Lakh) 
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 

Contract Assets at the bellinnin~ of the year 91.957.14 84.210.31 

Contract Assets at the end of the year (Note 4 2 
91.668A9 91,957.14 

& 7.5) 

Net lncrease/(Decrease) (288 .65) 7,74683 

For the year 2023-24, there has been net decrease by Rs 288.65 Lakh (For the year 2022-23, there was net increase by Rs 7776.83 Lakh). 

(iii) Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are balances due to customers, these arise when a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue reCognised to 
date under the input method and advance received in long term construction contracts. The amount of Advance received gets adjusted over the construction period as and 
when invoicing is made to the customer. 

(Its in Lakh ) 
particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-23 

Contract Liabilities at the beginning of the year - -

Contract Liabilities at the end of the vear -
Net lncrease/(Decrease) - -

(iv) Details of the Unbilled Revenue Conveted into the trade receivables are as follows:-
(Its in Lakh 

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 

Unbilled revenue converted into trade 
6,29479 

receivable 

(e) Revenue recognised in the period from: 

(i) The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to brought-forward contract liabilities 
(Its inl..nkh 

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-M.r-23 

Amount received as Advance in Construction -
ConlIa!: ts 
Perfonnance obligations satifised in the 
previous year - -

(f). Cost to obtain the contract 
Amount recognised as asset as at 31st March. 2024 is Rs Nil (As at 3 I ,t March. 2023: Rs Nil) 
Amount of amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year is Rs Nil (FY 2022-2J: Rs Nil) 

(g) Unsatisfied long-term contraclli 
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from long-term construction contracts: 

(Rs in LIIkh) 
Parti~ulHrs 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 
Aggregate amount of the transaction price 
allocated to long-tenn construction contracts 

40.155.64 44,396.58 
that are partially or fully unsatisfied as at 31 
March 

Management expects that transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of March 31, 2024 will be recognised as revenue in the future as follows: 

(Rs in Lakh) 
Particulars March 31. 2024·· March 31. 20230 • 

In one year or less 1,89?19 4.871 35 
More than one year to 2 years 1.817.48 126675 
More than 2 years 36.445 .97 38,258.48 

Total 40.155.64 44.396.58 

.... The amount disclosed abo\e does not include variable consideration which is constrained_ 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN - U74999DL2018GOIJJ4028 
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

33 Disclosure as required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as under: -
eRo in Lakh) 

ParHculars 
For the year J 1st Mar For the year Jist 

2024 Mar 2023 

(a). the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of each accounrin~ year: 
• Princ~al amount due to Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises 5047 

• Interest due on above Nil 

(b). the amount of interest paid by the Region in terms of secrion 16 0 

the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along 
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year; 

(c). the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 Nil 

(d). the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 0 

each accounting year; 

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

34 Service Concession Arrangements 

Public to private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession 
Arrangements (lnd AS-115) Appendix "C" is applicable if: 

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must 
provide them, and at what price; and 

b) The Grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlemen~ or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the 
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement. 

Nil 

Nil 

Ifboth of the above conditions are met simultaneously, a financiaJ asset is recognized to the extent that the operator has an 
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset from or at the discretion of the Grantor for the 
service, 

These financial assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus 
other direct costs directly attributable to the operation. They are then stated at amortized cost at the end of each financial 
year. 

The Company (IrconYKEL) has entered into service concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of India 
(NHAI) dated 25 ,08,2018 . in tenns of which NHAI (the grantor) has authorized the company for construction, operation 
and maintenance ofYadodar. Kim Expressway from (Sapna to Padra Section ofYadodara Mumbai Expressway) (Phase 
lA-Package II) from kin 323 .00 to km 355 00 (approx. , 32 kin) in the State ofGujarat by Eight-Laning thereof on design, 
build, fmance, operate and transfer ,"DBOT Annuity" or "Hybrid Annuity") and transfer basis , In terms of the said 
ab'Teement lrconYKEL has an obligation to complete construction of the project and to keep the project assets in proper 
working condition~ The Project is under Annuity pattern 

The Concession period shall be 15 years commencing from the appointed date. At the end of the concession period. the 
assets will be transfoned back to National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) 

In case ofmaterial breach in tenns of agreement the NHAI and IrconVKEL have right to tenninate the agreement if they 
are not able to cUle thl! event of default in accordance with such agreement. 

Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Ind AS liS 
In tenns of the disclosure rcquiled in Appendix D in [nd AS -115 Re\cnue from Customers. as noti fled in thoe companies 
(Indian Accounting Standard) rules 10 16. the amount considered in the financial statements up to the balance sheet date are 
as follows:-

(Ro in Lakll) 

Particular 
For the year ended For the year ended 

3 lst March ZOH 31st March 20B 
Contract Re\ eoue Reeo1!nized U9892 20.54400 I 
Al!l.!recare amount ofCos( incurred 4.128.74 21.60 0 33 
Amount of ad, anee rt!cei\ cd from Client 
Amount of retention by Client (Note No 7.5) 3.825 60 2.11838 

ProfirJ( Loss) recognised during the period for exchange of construction 
170. 18 -1,14633 

service for a financial asset 

Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works (Note No 7 I) 1.237 60 II 75 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
('IN - lI74999DL20I 8G01334028 

NOles fUl'lning IllIrt of the financial statements fur the yellr ended 31st March 2024 

JS Disclosures Ilursu.nt to amendmenl in Schedule III of Ihe Companies AcI20J3: 

The MCA vide 1I0lificalion daled 241h March 2021 has amended Schedllk III 10 Ihe Companies Acl. 2013 in respecl of certain disclosllres which are applicable trom I sl April 2021 The Company has incorpOlalcd Ihe changes as 
p~r tile si.lld ;.lIl1cndmcll( in the linancial S(:lICl11cnts and below disclosures are made in compliance oftl1e said amendment: 

(I) rhe Company has no Iransactions wilh comp'lIlies sllUck otf ulldel section 248 of Ihe Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Acl, 1956 during Ihe financial year ended 31 st March 2024 and 31 sl March 2023 

(II) I he Company has not II adcd or inveSled in C,yplO Curr ency 01 V,rtllal Cllrrency during Ihe financial year ended 31 st March 2024 and 31 sl March 2023. 

(III) I he COl1lpany do nol have any Benanll plopelly 'IS on ] I 51 Malch 2024 <lIld J I 51 March 2023, where any proceeding has been inilialed or pending againsl the company for holding any Benami propeny 

II\,) rhe Company do nol have any prior pcriod err 01 s in Ihe tillancial yCal ended 31 st March 2024 and 3 I st March 2023 to be disclosed separalely in statement of changes in equity. 
(v) '1 Ire Com"allY do nol have any chalges 01 salist"clion whIch is yet 10 be regislercd with ROC beyond the statutory period for the tinancial year ended 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 

(VI) DUlmg Ihe tinaneial yenr 2023-24 and 2022-23, Ihe Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including toreib~l entities (Intennediaries) with the underslanding that Ihe 
Inlelmediary shall: 

(al dir"~lly or indiredly lend or invesl in olher pel',ons or ""Iilies idclltifil:d in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(bl provide any guaranlee, security or Ihe like 10 or on behalf' of' the UluUl RI e Beneficiaries 

(VII) DUling Ihe Iinancial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, the Company have nOI received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreib'l1 enlities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 
olhel wise) Ihat Ihe Company shall: 
(a) diledly or indilectly lend or invesl in olher pelSons 01 enlilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Bendiciaries) or 
(b) plOvide any gualantee, security on he like on behalfuf'lhe Ultimate Benetici.ries, 

(\ iii) The Company docs nol have any loans and advances in Ihe IIatule or loans 10 p,omolelS, direclors, KMP and olherrelated panies for Ihe financial year ended 31 sl March 2024 and 31 st March 2023 
The Company does not have any imll10vable I'II'pellies as al 31 st Malch 2024 and 31 st March 2023 
The Company docs nOI have any tlansaclions in tilHincial yeal 202]-24 and 2022-23, where the company has not used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which il was taken at the 

(IXl hal'lIlce sheet date. 

(xl rhe Company has not been declaled as witful d.""lltel by allY bank or tinancial Institution for the financial year ended 31 st March 2024 and 31 sl March 2023 
(xi) '1 he Coml'any is nOllequired to submil statemenl of current assets with the bank and II1erefore reconciliation of the slatement filed by the company with bank and the books of accounts is not applicable 
(xii) The Company has complied with the number of layel S p,eSCI ibed undel the Companies Act, 2013. 
(,iii) The Company have not enteled inlo .my scheme(s) ornnangel11enls during the year ending 31 st March 2024 and period ending 31st March 2023. 

The Company does nol have any transaction which is not reconled in Ihe books of accounts Ihat has been subsequently surrendered or disclosed as income during the year as part of the on going lax assessments under the 
(.",.) Income Ta.' Acl, 1%1 (such as, search or survey 01 any olher relevanl proviSIOns of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 

I.w) The CompmlY has not received any g"lIlls and dOI1<llions dUllllg Ihe year ending 31st March 2024 and period ending 31st March 2023 

Th. Company docs nol have any Capllal W(lI k· III ' I)ro~rcss. 1", ,,,,ln1<:rrt PI OPClty, Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development as at 31 sl March, 2024 and 31 st March, 2023 During the year 2023-24 and 2022-
(wI) ~J. Ihe company has not revalued any of ils l'lupcny,plant and <tIUljll11t l1t. 
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(.'\\'11) rill! Jolluwing accounting ratios ale disclosed : 

Pa rticula rs Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 U!., change Reason for change more than 25'1., 

CllI l'cnt laliu Current Assets Cun elll Liabilities 3.06 299 234% Not ~icablc 
Debt-equilY ratio TOlal Debt SIHueholde, 's Equity 205 2_51 -1833% Not Applicable 
Dcbt selvicc I.:ovclage latio Ci.lI nlllgs IlII dcbt SCI vice Debl service - Interest Thorc is an increase in Eamings UUfit1g 

~ Nel plOtil "ne, taxes + & Lease Payments + Ihe year and further Ihe Company 
Non-casl. opcI3ting Principal Repayments rCI",id the existing loan of IRCON 
e.xpcnsl!s I JlIlclest + ,hrouj!h refinancing from Bank of 
olhcl <ldJlIstIlH!l1t 

1.15 0.85 35.29% 
Baroda in the last year and there is no 
refinancing in the current year, 
therefore ratio in current year is 
imprt.1VetL 

Retlll n un equity ratio Net I'lotiis ,,!'te,' taxes - AveHlge Shareholder's The Net Profits after taxes have 
Prclcrencc lJividcno Equily incle.sed by more than double durinll 

015 0.08 87.50% 
the year. due 10 majO! decrease in the I 

Project Expenses Therefore, there is 
increase in the ratio. 

Invenlol)' tUl1lover ratio Cosl oi' ~ouds sold Avel age Inventory NA 
THlde leceivables turnover ratio Net Cledit sales ~ Gross AV~lage Trade Decrease in the Revenue from 

CI edit sales - sah:s I ctllln Receivable Operation and increase in the amount 

688 167.64 -95.90% of Trade Receivables in Current year. 
Therefore, there is a decline in the 
ratIo. 

' r,ade payable turnover latio Net clcc.iil pun;hases = Average Trade 
GlOSS credit pUl'clmscs - Payables NA 

pw clllASC rctul n 

Net capital tumover ratio Net sales ~ t Olal sales - Workinll capital - Increase in the Current Asset in 

sales IJctUrIl Current assets - Current year when compared with last 

Ctll I ent liabilities year and decrease in the Revenue fI 0111 
027 IA8 -81.76% Operation in the Cun ent year 

Therefore, there is a decline in this 

rat io. 

Nel Jllolit,atio Nell'l<)lit Net sales = Total sales 
sales I etllm The Net Profits after taxes have 

increased by more than double during 
the year, due to major decrease in tI,e 

I 12 0.11 918.18% Project Expenses Further, the 
Revenue from Operarions have been 
reduced sib'Ilificantly, resuiting in 
Sib'Ilificant increase in the latio. 
Therefore. the ratio has increased 

Retliin on ""pital employed Earnings bcrUic intelcst Capital Employed - Decrease in the Operating Protit in 

and ta:"\cs Tangible Net Worth + 
-00022 0.0046 -14783% 

Current year Thererore, there is 

Total Debt + Deferred decline in the ratio 

Tax Liability 

Return un investment Intel est (Finance Income) Investment NA 
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IRCON VADODARA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
CIN - U74999DL2018GOl334028 
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 st March 2024 

36 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR) 

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company is required to spend, in every 
financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR 
Policy The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under: 

a) Amount required to be spent on CSR Activities 

IRs In Lakh) 
Particulars For the year 31 st Mar For the year 31st Mar 

2024- 2023 
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company dunng the year 73.40 54.02 
DepoSited and claimed in earlier years, now refunded - -
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during Ihe year 73.40 54.02 

-

b) Amount spent on CSR Activities 
,.~- ... -_ . . . . 

Particulars For the year 31 st Mar 2024 For the year 31st Mar 2023 
Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total 

On Construction/acquisition of any asset' 71 .88 - 71 .88 2.38 50.87 53.25 
On purposes other than above 152 - 1.52 0.77 0.09 0.86 
Total 73.40 - 73.40 3.15 50.96 54.11 

'Assets purchased and handed over to respective organisation and are not being held by the Company 

c) Break-up of the CSR expenses under major heads is as under: 

• -- • - " -r 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended I 
31st March 2024 31st March.2023 

Contribution to Prime Minister CARES Fund for fiqhtinq aqainst COVID-19 1.52 0,371 

Eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition, promoting preventive healthcare & sanitation & making available safe 7188 53.34 1 

drinking water 
Promoting Education, including special education and employment enhanCing vocation skills especially among - 0.40 

children 
Ensuring environmental susta inability - -
Settin~ up homes and hostels for women and orphans. Setting up old aqe homes. day care centres and such other - -
Sports - -
Others (includinq Other Admin Cost) - -
Total 73.40 54.11 
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d) Details related to unspent obligations : 

lI'~ III 1-0"'111 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
3151 March 2024 31 51 March 2023 

Unspent amount ln relation to: 
- Ooooing proiect - -
- Other than onoolno orolect - -

e) Details related to spent I unspent obligations: 

..................... , 
Particulars For the year 31 st For the year 31st 

Mar 2024 Mar 2023 

Opemno Balance - -
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company dUring the year (as per (a) above) - -
Amount spent by the Company dUring the year (as per (b) above)" - -
Shortfa/l/(Excess) amount spent b}' the comparl}' - -
• There are no related party transaction in respect to CSR expenditure 

f) Other disclosure: 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended I 
31st March 2023 31st March 2024 

Details of related party transactions, e g" contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR NA 
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard (1) 

Where a provision is made with respect to a liabil ity incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the NA 
movements in the provision 

37 Disdusurc tiUrSU31lt to sectiun 186 of the Companies Act 2013: 
Thele alc nu loans given, i,weSlmenls made and guaranlcc glvcnllthcr Ihan discluscd in nule 14 lire made by the Company during the year 

38 Chall~es ill accounting pulicies and disclosures 
I'he Mi,mt.)' of Cur po rate Alrairs has notified Companies (Indi'lIl i\ccounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are 
clkcllve "Ir annual perious b~gi nning on or alier Aplil I, 20D 'I he Cl"npany applied for the first-time these amendments : 

(i) Detinltlo" of Accounting Estimates - Amendments 10 Ind AS X 
The amenuments clmily th~ distinction betwecn changes in "ccounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors, It has also been clarilied how entities use 
measuremenl techniques and inputs to develOp accounting estimates The ",nendments had no impact on the Company's financial statements, 
(Ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS I 

NA 

NA 

The "lIlendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their 'signilicant' accounting policies 
w,th a ,clluirement to disclose their ' material ' accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy 
disclosllfcs The amendments have had an impact lin the Company 's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the 

Company 's linancial statements 

(II i) Llelc!'n:d Tax related to Assets and Liabi li lies arising i'rom a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12 
'I' hc "mclllJments narrow the scope of the initi,,1 recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary 
dilkrences such as leases. As a result ofthesc amendments, the ClImpany has to recognize a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liabil ity in 
rcl" lIon III ilS righl-ol~use "ssets Since, these balances qualify Ii)( lIllsel as per the requirements of paragraph 74 ofInd AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet 

~~ 
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39 Other disdosures 

(il 

(ii) 

The Comflllny has a system of obtaining periodic contirmation of balances from banks and other parties. 
In the opinion orthe management, the value ofassels on realisalion in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance 
Sheel 

(iii) Figures l'Oundell off to the nearest rupees in Lakh 

4 Certain previous year ligures have been reclassitied lor consislency with current year presentations. These reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of 
o operations. Also, previous year tigures are shown LlIlder brackel ( ) to differentiate from current year tigures. 

As pCI' our Report of even date attached 

I'or Bhasill RaghllvlIn & Co 

Chlll'lcl'cd Accountllnts 

Fllg;;OOl97N 

($~ ~ ___ I 

Vikl'am Sillgh 
l'al'llIel' 
M. No. 093458 

I'I~cc New Delhi 

Dale . 10 05 1024 

For alld 011 behalf of Board of Directors 

Ircoll Vadodara Kim Expressway Limited 

_ a~· -= 
Nitesh Kumar G ASliti 

CEO CFO 

Shashwat Chaudhary 

CS 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF IRCON VADODRA KIM EXPRESSWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Vadodra Kim Expressway Limited for the 

year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed 

under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under 

Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements 

under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with the standards 

on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done 

by them vide their Audit Report dated 10 May 2024. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to 

conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Vadodra Kim Expressway 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated ".t~ .07.2024 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

Dr. Ni P oswami 
Director General of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
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